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The Private Power and Infrastructure Board (PPIB) is a "one-window" facility for the
investors interested in power generation & allied infrastructure and acts on behalf of all the
Ministries, Departments and agencies of the Government of Pakistan (GoP) in matters
relating to the setting up of power projects in the private sector. I am pleased to present
the Annual Report of PPIB 2014-2015 covering private sector investments, achievements
and activities for developing power sector and allied infrastructure in the country during
preceding year.

When we were given the opportunity to serve the country in 2013, the most critical challenge
before our government was to control the hours long power outages and to make country
self-sufficient in the power generation. Sensing the magnitude and the impact of the crisis on
socio-economic development and the people, our government has taken various measures
with a view to address the root causes of the crisis and to place the power sector on solid
footing to meet the future demand. In order to cut down the generation cost for making it
affordable to the masses, focus of the government has been to employ affordable fuels like
coal, hydropower and R-LNG in particular. Recently, China-Pakistan Economic Corridor
(CPEC), has been initiated between two brother countries, under which PPIB is processing
various coal and hydro based power generation projects, majority of which will be completed
during 2017-18.
I recognize private sector to be the engine and purveyor of economic growth. Realizing the
importance of private sector participation in the power sector of the country, and its previous
contributions to our power sector, we look forward to a robust response, and assure all
facilitation in return.

PPIB is doing a great job in moving forward the agenda of our government by implementing

twenty eight private power generation projects of more than 15000 MWs, out of which nine

projects of 9000 MWs are being pursued under the CPEC. All projects under the PPIB are

based on coal, hydro and gas, which are at different stages of development and upon

completion will contribute significantly in bringing down the generation cost to affordable

levels.

Khawaja Muhammad Asif
Minister for Water & Power/
Chairman PPIB
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Private Power and Infrastructure Board (PPIB) is implementing the policies of the
government to attract investments in the power sector for achieving the given targets. PPIB
acts on behalf of all the Ministries, Departments and agencies of the Government of
Pakistan (GoP) in matters relating to the setting up of power projects in the private sector, to
grant consents on behalf of various agencies of the Government of Pakistan, to negotiate
and finalize with prospective developers the Implementation Agreement, and to
correspond and liase with concerned local and international agencies to facilitate and
expedite the progress of the private sector projects. PPIB also provides technical and legal
support to the provinces, AJ&K and Gilgit Baltistan, and monitors & assists Independent
Power Producers. I feel honor to present the Annual Report of PPIB 2014-2015 covering
private sector investments, achievements and activities for setting up power generation
plants in the country during preceding year.

The Government attaches top priority to generate electricity at affordable cost through
utilizing indigenous resources, coal and hydro in particular. In line with the policy of the
government, PPIB is handling and facilitating development of 28 power generation projects
of cumulative capacity of 15063 MW based on hydro, coal and gas to meet the future
energy requirements. From these, 6 coal based power projects of 6270 MW and 3 hydro
based power projects of 2690 MW are being processed under the fate-changer China
Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC) program. PPIB is facilitating for implementation of
projects being developed under CPEC on fast track basIs, and investors are being
supported and development is monitored regularly to meet commercial operation dates by
2017-18.

PPIB has a track record of successful facilitation of setting up 31 IPPs of more than 9000 MW
fetching foreign direct investment of 10 billion US dollars. Witnessing PPIB's success in
attracting private investments in power sector of Pakistan, the Government of Pakistan has
recently given additional mandate of handling specified power projects in the public sector
to implement and operate them as independent and efficient corporate entities and create a
healthy competition between public and private sector. Currently, PPIB is facilitating three R
LNG based power generation projects of 3600 MW cumulative power generation capacity
in the public sector. These projects include, namely (i) 1230 MW Power Plant at Haveli
Bahadur Shah, District Jhang, (ii) 1223 MW Power Plant at Balloki, District Kasur, and (iii)
1180.13 MW Power Plant at Bhikki, District Sheikhupura. PPIB is processing above
mentioned three projects as Independent Power Producers (IPPs) according to the
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provisions of GoP's Power Generation Policy 2015.
The government also realizes that a reliable transmission network is required to evacuate
electricity from the power projects being built, and has taken initiative to develop the
transmission line network with due participation from private sector. A comprehensive
Transmission Line Policy has been formulated and investors are being invited through
International Competitive Bidding for Transmission Line Projects.

I have always been appreciative of the contributions of private sector in development of
Pakistan's power sector and take this opportunity to reiterate PPIB's commitment to
continue its support to the investors in achieving future goals leading to end the electricity
crisis through affordable means. I am also grateful to the Board members, Ministry of Water
& Power, management and employees of PPIB whose contribution has also played a major
role in developing power sector.

The Annual Report 2014-15 covers an overview of PPIB's achievements including
construction start by various projects, achieving Financial Closures, issuance of Letters of
Interest (LOI), Letters of Support (LOS), executing Project agreements (IA, PPA, FSA, WUA
etc), activities, decisions, support extended to the stakeholders, facilitation to the investors,
status of ongoing power projects, new initiatives, future plans, and audited accounts.

PPIB welcomes valuable suggestions from the Honorable Parliamentarians, federal and
provincial government departments, stakeholders, and general public for further
improving the coordination and facilitation to the private investors, Federal & Provincial
departments to enhance investments in the power sector.

Shah Jahan Mirza
Managing Director, PPIB
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1. Private Power and Infrastructure Board

The Private Power and Infrastructure Board (PPIB) was created in 1994 as "One Window

Facilitator" to promote private sector participation in the power sector of Pakistan. In 2012

PPIB was made a statutory organization through Private Power and Infrastructure Board Act

2012 (Act VI of 2012). As per its mandate, PPIB facilitates investors in establishing private

power projects and related infrastructure, executes Implementation Agreement (IA) with

Project Sponsors and issues assurances and guarantee on behalf of Government of

Pakistan.

1.1 Functions of PPIB

• to award projects to sponsors or private power companies, prepare all

necessary or appropriate documentation, execute any of such documentation

with private power companies, their sponsors, lenders pursuant to the power

policies and, whenever necessary or appropriate, other interested parties;

• to recommend and facilitate development of power policies;

• to take decisions on matters pertaining to power projects set up by private sector

or through public-private partnership, and other issues pertaining thereto,

provided that prior to taking a decision to construct or cause to be constructed, a

hydroelectric power station in any Province, shall consult the Provincial

Government concerned;

• to coordinate with the Provincial Governments, local governments, Azad Jammu

and Kashmir (AJ and K) and regulatory bodies in implementation of the power

policies, if so required;

• to coordinate and facilitate the sponsors in obtaining consents and licences from

various agencies of the Federal Government, provincial governments, local

governments and AJ and K;

• to work in close coordination with power sector entities and play its due role in

implementing power projects in private sector or through public-private

partnership as per power system requirements;

• to function as a one-stop organization on behalf of the Federal Government and

its Ministries, Departments and agencies in relation to private power companies,

their sponsors, lenders and whenever necessary or appropriate, other interested
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parties;

• to draft, negotiate and enter into security package documents or agreements

and guarantee the contractual obligations of entities under the power policies;

• to execute, administer and monitor contracts;

• to prescribe and receive fees and charges for processing applications, and

deposit and disburse or utilize the same, if required;

• to obtain from sponsors or private power companies, as the case may be,

security instruments and encash or return them, as deemed appropriate;

• to coordinate with the provincial governments and regulatory bodies in

implementation ofthe power policies, if so required;

• to act as agent for development, facilitation and implementation of power

policies and related infrastructure in the Gilgit Baltistan areas and AJ and K;

• to open and operate bank accounts in local and foreign currencies as

permissible under the laws of Pakistan;

• to commence, conduct, continue and terminate litigation, arbitration or alternate

dispute resolution mechanisms at whatever levels may be necessary or

appropriate, and hire and pay for the services of lawyers and other experts

therefor;

• to perform any other function or exercise any other power as may be incidental or

consequential for the performance of any of its functions or the exercise of any of

its powers, or as may be entrusted by the Federal Government.

1.2 Composition of the Board of PPIB

Under Part-III Section 6 of the Act 2012, Federal Minister for Water and Power heads

the Board as Chairman with members from the relevant ministries at Secretary level,

provincial representatives and also private members.
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Following is the composition of the Board of PPIB:

Board Members

Chairman

Khawaja Muhammad Asif
Federal Minister
Water and Power

Mr. Mohammad Younus Dagha
Federal Secretary

Ministry of Water &Power
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Mr. Shah Jahan Mirza
Managing Director

Private Power and Infrastructure Board
(Secretary of the Board)
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Dr. Waqar Masood Khan
Federal Secretary

Ministry of Finance

Mr. Hasan Nawaz Tarar
Federal Secretary

Planning Commission
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Mr. Zafar Mahmood
Chairman WAPDA

13

Mr. Arshad Mirza
Federal Secretary

Ministry of Petroleum and
Natural Resources

Mr. Tariq Bajwa
Chairman

Federal Board of Revenue



Mr. Muhammad Siddique Memon
Chief Secretary, Sindh

Mr. Amjad Ali Khan
Chief Secretary

Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

Annual Report 2014-15

Mr. Khaleeq Nazar Kayani
Secretary Energy

Government of Balochistan

14

Mr. Abid Ali, Sqn Ldr®
Chief Secretary

Azad Jammu & Kashmir

Mr. Khalid Awais Ranjha
Additional Secretary
Energy Department,

Government of Punjab
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Engr. Nasir Ali Shigri
Representative from Gilgit Baltistan

Syed Zaheer-U1-lslam
Secretary

Administration, Infrastructure
& Coordination FATA Secretariat

o R t r f . t t f hP'

Mr. Muhammad Zubair Motiwala

(Sindh)

Mr. Muhammad Yunis Marwat

(Khyber Pakhtunkhwa)
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1.3 Role of PPIB in the Power Sector

Since its creation, PPIB has proved its mettle which started off by facilitating the first

round of IPPs in the 1990s. At that time, the IPP experience was rarely found throughout

the developing world and the successfullPP facilitation by PPIB became the anecdote

for many of the developing countries aspiring to attract IPPs in their countries. In the first

round PPIB attracted many international investors of repute and succeeded in bringing

in Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) worth around US$ 5 Billion in only a few years.

PPIB's role includes cohesion and communication with various players of the power
sector to make power projects a reality. The following illustration depicts the
communication structure of PPIB with other players:

GOP
(Ministry/Division)

CPPAGL

Consultant

Provinces/AI&K

NEPRA
Regul or

DIA/IA

LOI/LOS

• (LOll Letter oflnterest
• (LOS) Letterof Support
• (IA) Implementation Agreement
• (PPA) Power Purchase Aareement
• (DIA) Direct Implementation Agreement

Lenders

Financing t
Documents ~
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1.4 Organogram

Board

HR & IT Section

HR

Finance & Policy
Sectio..;.;.n__

r----_I_---,
Coal

Projects Section

Thermal Hydro

1.5 Meetings of the Board

During the financial year2014-15, six meetings of the Board of PPIBwere held at PPIB
under the chai rmanship of the honourable Minister for Water & Power who is also the
Chairman of PPI B.

a) 96th Board Meeting held on 2nd July, 2014

Following key decisions were taken in the meeting:

(i) The Board approved submission of the Summary for ECC consideration regarding

continuation of Income Tax exemption to HUBCO-Narowal Project after its

demerger.

The Board ratified the MOUs with: Power Construction Corporation of China &

QINVEST (one MOU for 2 x 660MW), China Gezhouba Group Limited (two MOUs

for 4x 660MW), ANC Holding LLC (one MOU for 2 x660MW), and China Machinery

Engineering Corporation (one MOU for 2 x 660MW).

(ii) The Board approved processing of new Coal-based projects (out of Gadani Power

Park) under the "Guidelines for Setting up of Private Power Projects under Short

Term Capacity Addition Initiative- August 201 0" and approved issuance of Notice

to Proceed and LOI to the Sponsors of referenced projects upon fulfilment of all

requirements according to the Guidelines, including but not limited to the
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submission of site confirmation letter from the Power Purchaser in the Proposal.

(iii) The Board ratified the extension in the validity of LOS of the Gulpur Hydropower

Project upto 31 51 December 2014 with doubling of the PG. The Board advised

Chairman WAPDA to submit specific proposal to the Board regarding studies for

creating water reservoirs on future Hydropower project sites.

(iv) The Board advised PPIB to approach the Office of Pakistan Commissioner for Indus

Waters (PClW) to take up the matter with the relevant institution of the Indian

authorities through proper channel on priority basis and manage to stop the Parnai

HPP in order to save the 130 MW Sehra HPP

(v) The Board approved constitution of a Committee under Secretary Water & Power

consisting of members from all stakeholders (Ministry of Water &Power, Ministry of

Finance, Ministry of Law, Planning Division, Board of Investment, Power Purchaser

/ NTDCL, Chief Secretaries of provinces, G Band AJK and three members from

private sector to carry out a comprehensive review of the Guidelines 2010,

especially vis-a-vis processing IPPs in Gadani and projects opting for upfront tariff

with particular focus on process re-engineering with the objective of removing

unnecessary procedural requirements and reducing multi-step evaluation

process and guarantees.

b) 9th Board Meeting held on 2th August, 2014

Following key decisions were taken in the meeting:

(i) The Board approved extension in the last date for submission of the EOI

Documents for IPPs in Gadani, effective from 181h August, 2014 upto 29th

Sepfember,2014.

(ii) PPIB Board ratified the decision of Chairman PPIB for submitting the ECC

Summary requesting ECC to allow NTDC or NEPRA to adjust the Non-Escalable

Component of Capacity Purchase Price of the tariff to the extent of 70% for Davis

Energen Limited as allowed for Projects implemented under 1994 Power Policy

and the Power Purchase Agreement.
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c) 98th Board Meeting held on 11 th November, 2014

Following key decisions were taken in the meeting:

(i) The Boa rd a p pro v e d pro c e s sin g 0 f 1 320M W HUB C 0 and

350 MW Siddiqsons projects at new size and site for which NTDC has already

issued its concurrence letter under the 'Guidelines for Setting up of Private Power

Projects under Short Term Capacity Addition Initiative - August 201 0'.

(ii) The Board approved the Terms and conditions of the Settlement Agreement and

Letter of Intent for conversion of Grange Power Limited (GPL) as RFO based

project to coal-based power project, and execution of the Settlement Agreement

with GPL and issuance of Letter of Intent.

(iii) The Board approved issuance of 'Notice to Proceed' dated 29th October 2014 to

CMEC for development of 300 MW indigenous coal-fired power plant at Pind

Dadan Khan, Salt Range, Punjab under the ECC approved 'Guidelines for

Setting up of Private Power Projects under Short Term Capacity Addition Initiative

- August 2010' with the condition that the GoPunjab would provide a letter of

facilitation/recommendation on the pattem discussed in the working paper. The

Board also approved issuance of LOI to CMEC subject to successful evaluation

of their credentials by PPIB's consultant and submission of Performance

Guarantee US$ 1,OOO/MW after compliance with the due requirements as

stipulated under the Guidelines.

(iv) The Board after reviewing the progress, decided that the LOI to coal-fired Early

Harvest Projects being pursued under China-Pakistan Economic Corridor be

extended according to one of following two options:

Option I:

- Extension in term of LOI commensurate with the delay in final notification of

Upfront Tariff beyond the LOI expiry date without doubling the PG; however,

PG validity be enhanced accordingly for 1320 MW imported coal project by

M/s Sinohydro Resources &AI-Maraqab; or
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Option II:

- Extension in term of LOI upto maximum period of three (03) months beyond

the LOI expiry date with double the PG.

(v) The Board advised MoW&P to constitute a committee as proposed in the

working paper for power planning. The Board advised to include representatives

of Ministry of Railways, Ports & Shipping, GENCO Holding Company, Energy

Departments of Provinces, AJ&K and Gilgit-Baltistan, PM Secretariat and Private

sector in the Committee. The Board also decided that till the time the Committee

formulates its recommendations, PPIB may continue with the processing and

development of IPPs approved by the PPIB Board.

(vi) The Board allowed PPIB to re-invite proposals for development of 350 MW

Athmuqam Hydropower Project. The Board constituted a Committee under MD

PPIB with its members from Ministry of Water and Power, Ministry of Finance,

Ministry of Law & Justice, WAPDA, NTDC, Govt. of AJ&K, AJ&K Council and

PPI B to oversee the evaluation process of the 350 MW Athmuqam HPP

d) 99th Board Meeting held on 15th December, 2014

Following key decisions were taken in the meeting:

(i) The Board directed PPIB that Standardized Security Package Documents (IA &

PPA) for Coal Power Projects be submitted to the ECC for approval. The Board

further directed that the key issues raised by the Sponsors and the views and

comments of the PPIB as endorsed by the Board of PPIB should be placed

before the ECC for its consideration.

(ii) The Board approved the working paper roadmap and key parameters for

conduct of ICB for IPPs based on 600 MMCFD R-LNG under GoP's CARE

Initiative, and decided that NEPRA & Power Purchaser be taken on board at the

outset.

Private Power and Infrastructure Board20

(iii) The Board approved four months extension in the LOS to Gulpur Hydropower

Project upon extension in the validity of the current PG which is already double of



the original guarantee amount. In case, NEPRA fails to determine Tariff within the

aforesaid period, then another two months extension in the LOS may be allowed

upon further extension in the validity of the PG by the Sponsors.

e) 1OOth Board Meeting held on 12th March, 2015

(i) The Board decided to extend the time line in case of coal based power plants

being currently processed by PPIB, from 3 months to 6 months under the LOI, for

filing tariff petition and Generation Licence application to NEPRA from the

issuance of Notice to Proceed by PPIB.

(ii) The Board approved extension for Six weeks for filing EPC stage tariff petition by

the Sponsors of 720 MW Karot Hydropower Project to NEPRA for tariff

determination

(iii) The Board granted approval to defer the Working Capital Director Agreement

(WCDA) arrangement for gas based projects until the finalization of RLNG

arrangement! gas supply contract. In the meantime, the existing gas based IPPs

may be issued no objections by PPIB to renew/obtain working capital lines

based on existing approved terms and conditions without execution of the

WCDA.

(iv) The Board deliberated the matter and approved in principle the submission of

revised Security Package Documents for Coal Power Projects to ECC in line with

the provisions of Power Generation Policy 2015 subject to its approval by Council

of Common Interests.

f) 101 st Board Meeting held on 16th June, 2015

(i) The Board granted approval for

Processing of the 2x330 MW Thar Coal Power Project under the Power

Generation Policy 2015 and the Upfront Tariff announced by NEPRA; with

M/s Engro Powergen Limited and M/s China Machinery Engineering

Corporation Limited (CMEC) (directly or through their wholly-owned

subsidiaries) as Initial Shareholders;
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(ii) The Board granted approval for

Processing of the 2x660 MW Port Qasim Power Project under the Power

Generation Policy 2015 and the Upfront Tariff announced by NEPRA; with

Mis Sinohydro Resources Limited, China and AI-Mirqab Capital, Qatar

(directly or through their wholly-owned subsidiaries) as Initial

Shareholders;

Board also approved signing of the Supplemental Agreement (SA) to the

Implementation Agreement (IA) with the Project Company based on the ECC

approved Standard SA with Project-specific changes.

(iii) The Board granted approval for

Processing of the 2x660 MW Sahiwal Power Project under the Power

Generation Policy 2015 and the Upfront Tariff announced by NEPRA; with

Mis Shandong Ruyi Science & Technology Group Company Limited and

Huaneng Shandong Power Generation Company Limited (directly or

through their wholly-owned subsidiaries) as Initial Shareholders;

The Board also approved the signing of the Implementation Agreement (IA)

and the Supplemental Agreement (SA) to the lA, based on the

ECC - approved Standard IA with Project-specific changes.

(iv) The Board granted approval for issuance of LOS to Mis Grange Power Limited

for developing 150 MW (Net) Coal-based Power Project near Arifwala District

Pakpattan.

(v) The Board granted approval for

Processing of the 2x660 MW Hub Power Project under the Power Generation

Policy 2015 and the Upfront Tariff announced by NEPRA; with Hub Power

Company Limited and China Power International Holdings Limited (directly

or through their subsidiaries) as Initial Shareholders;

- Board granted approval for adopting in interim, till the approval of the
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·r
Guidelines under the 2015 Power Policy, procedures for prequalification

under the Guidelines 201 0 and the various timelines / milestones specified in

the 2002 Power Policy; except where the 2015 Power Policy specifies a

different procedure, timeline, or milestone to process the Project;

Issuance of Notice to Proceed (NTP) and Letter of Intent (LOI) to Hub Power

Company Limited for development of the Project; and

- Signing and issuance of Letter of Support (LOS) against Performance (Bank)

Guarantee securing Financial Close (FC) within nine months after fulfilment

of all requirements under the LOI

(vi) The Board granted approval of the following:

Processing of 4 x 350 MW Thar Coal Power Project by Shanghai Electric

Group Company Limited under Power Generation Policy 2015 & Upfront Tariff

announced by NEPRAwith Shanghai Electric Group Company Limited as the

Main Sponsor;

(vii) The Board approved the Standardized drafts of Tripartite LOS, Performance

Guarantee and Facilitation Agreement for execution with the Provincial/AJ&K/GB

Governments; and The Board authorized PPIB to make project-specific changes

in the Standardized documents and execute the same under the Power

Generation Policy 2015.

(vii) The Board ratified the signing of the MOU between China Three Gorges

Corporation (CTG) , Silk Road Fund (SRF), and PPIB for development of private

hydropower projects in Pakistan.

(viii) The Board granted extension in validity of the Letter of Support for Gulpur

Hydropower Project up to 31 51 October 2015; provided there is no additional cost

implication on the part of GOP / GoAJ&K and their entities, and subject to

extension in validity of the existing double Performance Guarantee (up to 31 51

January 2016 by Mira Power Limited.). The Board advised Ministry of Water and

Power to take up the matter for early tariff determination of PPI B projects pending

with NEPRA.

(ix) The Board granted approval for extension in the LOI for the 300 MW coal-based
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Pind Dadan Khan Project by China Machinery Engineering Corporation (CMEC),

for a period of three months, i.e. till 19th August 2015; without doubling the

Performance Guarantee (PG).

(x) The Board granted approval for

Further processing of the 660 MW imported coal based Power Project at Port

Oasim by Lucky Electric Power Company Limited, under the Policy for Power

Generation 2015 and Upfront Tariff announcecj by NEPRA;

Signing and issuance of LOS dated 8th June 2015 against Performance

(Bank) Guarantee securing FC within twelve (12) months.

The Board also granted approval in interim, till the approval of the Guidelines

under the Power Generation Policy 2015, for similar processing parameters for

other non-CPEC projects.

(xi) The Board allowed PPIB to execute WCDA on following security structure for

Dual-fueIIPPs:

The Funded Working Capital Facility amount is to be secured on

Non-Transferable Assets (Current Assets & Receivables), while for maximum

upto 33.33% margin ranking/subordinate charge or lien shall be allowed on

the Transferable Assets (Fixed Assets).

- The Non-Funded Payment Guarantee Facility amount for the Gas Supplier is

to be secured through ranking charge on Transferable Assets (Fixed Assets)

along with maximum margin of upto 33.33%.

J•

I
I
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2.1 China - Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC)

Background

Pakistan and China have been historically

enjoying very friendly and cordial relationships,

which are based on mutual trust and respect for

each other's interests. Recently, both

governments have made a conscious effort to

focus on expanding the economic dimension of

the relationship and bring it up at par with the

excellent cooperation the two countries enjoy at

the strategic and political level.

Accordingly, based on MoU signed between the two Governments on CPEC, in July

2013, a CPEC framework agreement was formally signed in November 2014. The CPEC

is being conceived as a Iynchpin of the plans by the two countries to deepen their

economic cooperation, with special emphasis on development in energy sector.

The increase in trade, investment and financial flows would bring peace and prosperity

to the region through enhancement in the competitiveness of the economies of the

countries, contribute to reducing regional disparities and social inequality, and improve

life expectancy and quality of life in every country and in the regions.

For institutional arrangement and development of the

China-Pak Economic Corridor, National Develoment and

Reform Commission (NDRC) China has constituted the

Joint Cooperation Committee (JCC-the Ministerial level

apex body under MoU) and subsidiary Working Groups

on Planning, Transport Infrastructure, Energy and

Gwadar for which they have nominated their respective

lead agencies. Accordingly, Working Groups in these

areas have been constituted on Pakistani side as well.

Since the signing of the MOU in July 2013, four meetings of the JCC, five meetings of the

Energy Working/Expert Group have been held besides other subsidiary visits and

meetings. Significant progress has been achieved in developing greater understanding

of each other's priorities, policy coordination, identification of early harvest projects,
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processing of projects for implementation, and long term planning.

Accordingly, while keeping in view the cooperation of Chinese government and the spirit

of the Government of Pakistan to provide cheap and reliable electricity, several projects

based on both local and imported coal have been included to give due importance to

coal based power generation projects in China-Pakistan Economic Corridor.

2.2 Power Projects included in the CPEC

PPIB is currently handling nine (09) advanced stage power projects of 9590 MW in the

private sector which are included in the list of CPEC. These power projects are also

diversified in fuel mix (imported coal, local coal, Thar coal and hydel). Furthermore,

these power projects are also diversified in terms of location and due consideration has

been given to utilize local fuels. Brief details are as under:

Port Qasim Power
Port Qasim, Imported

1 Project at Port 1320 Prioritized
Karachi, Sindh Coal

Qasim, Karachi

Shanghai Electric Thar Block - I,
2 1320 Thar Coal Prioritized

Coal Power Project Sindh

I Engro Thar Coal Thar Block - II,
3 1320 Thar Coal Prioritized

I Power Project Sindh
I
!

Sahiwal Coal Power Qadarabad, Imported
4 1320 Prioritized

Project Sahiwal, Coal
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I. . ...

Punjab

HUBCO Coal Power HUB, Imported Actively
5 1320

Project Balochistan Coal Promoted

CMEC Coal Power
Salt Range,

Actively
6 300 Pind Dadan Local Coal

Project Promoted
Khan, Punjab

I Hydro

Suki Kinari Actively
7 870 Mansehra, KP Hydel

Hydropower Project Promoted

-

Karot Hydropower Rawalpindi, Actively
8 720 Hydel

Project Punjab Promoted

Kohala Hydro Power
1100

River Jhelum, Actively
9 Hydel

Project AJ&K Promoted

---

TOTAL 9590

While considering national importance of the aforementioned projects under CPEC Framework, PPIB is

maintaining effective coordination with Ministry of Water and Power, Prime Minister's Performance Delivery

Unit and Planning and Development Division for monitoring the progress and timelines of these projects.

Province wise Break- up of CPEC Projects
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Fuel wise Break-up of CPEC Projects

The status of each project is discussed separately in proceeding paragraphs.

2.3 Coal Projects under CPEC Framework

2.3.1 2 x 660 MW Imported Coal Based Power Project at Port Qasim, Karachi by Port
Qasim Electric Power Company Limited

Sponsors of this project are actively implementing the project with the support of

PPIB. Construction activities have kicked off at project site. The project is

planned to be completed in year 2018, whereas first unit synchronization is

expected in 2017. During the year, following major activities were carried out:

Issuance of Letter of Support on 1t h April2015

Signing of Implementation Agreement with GOP/PPIB on 18th April2015

Signing of Power Purchase Agreement with NTOC 18th April2015

Start of major construction activities in June 2015

Issuance of Upfront Tariff and Generation License in February 2015

2.3.2 1320 MW Imported Coal based Power Project at Sahiwal by Mis. Huaneng

Shandong Ruyi (Pakistan) Energy (Private) Limited

The project was initiated by the PPOB, Government of Punjab. After issuance of

LOI, PPOB monitored and approved the feasibility study conducted by the
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sponsors. Upon approval of tariff by NEPRA, PPOB recommended the project to

PPIB for issuance of Tripartite LOS, pursuant to Power Policy 2015. Accordingly, a

Tripartite LOS was issued by PPIB and PPOB. Sponsors are actively working for

development of the project. Some of the major activities during this year are as

follows:

Approval of the feasibility study by PPOB

Issuance of Tripartite Letter of Support on 18th April2015

Start of major construction activities in June 2015

Issuance of UpfrontTariff by NEPRAon 31 st March 2015

2.3.3 660 MW Thar Coal based Power Project at Thar Block-II Sindh by Mis. Engro

Powergen Limited

Private Power and Infrastructu re Board30

TCEB has allocated Block-II to Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company (SECMC) for

Integrated coal mining and power generation projects. Based on the coal supply

from SECMC, Mis. Engro Powergen Thar Limited is developing this power

generation project in Thar Block-II in phase-I. The Project shall utilize 3.8 Million

Tonnes of Coal per annum which shall result in foreign exchange outflow savings

of over US$ 400 Million per annum. This being the first project in Thar, sponsors

are trying their best to pave way for development of Thousands of MW on

indigenous coal which will produce cheap and affordable electricity and will also

reduce dependence on the imported fuels. During this year, the following

prominent activities under the supervision of PPIB were carried related to this

project:

Issuance of Notice to proceed on 31 st October 2014

Issuance of LOI on 20th November 2014

Issuance of Letter of Support on 1yth April 2015

Signing of Implementation Agreementwith GOP/PPIB on 4th May 2015

Signing of Power Purchase Agreement with CPPAGLon 4th May 2015

Signing of Supplemental to Implementation Agreement on 4th May 2015

Issuance of Upfront Tariff and Generation License in March 2015



I

2.3.4 300 MW local Coal based Power Project at Pind Dadan Khan by Mis. China

Machinery Engineering Corporation (CMEC)

This project under the CPEC Framework was forwarded to the Federal

Government by Government of Punjab with the assurance that, availability of

Punjab coal is sufficient to fuel this project and that this project will pave path for

about 1,500 MW indigenous coal based projects in Punjab. Furthermore the

Government of Punjab also showed its keen interest and support for the

implementation of the subject project on fast-track basis as it will be beneficial for

the development I exploration of local coal reserves in Punjab. PPIB is currently

processing the project. Some of the activities carried out in PPIB on this project

are listed below:

Submission of proposal by sponsors on 2th October 2014

Issuance of Notice to proceed on 29th October 2014

Issuance of LOI on 19th November 2014

Submission of tariff application to NEPRA

2.3.5 1320 MW Imported Coal based Power project at Hub Balochistan by Mis. Hub

Power Company Limited

Sponsors of this project are actively implementing the project with the support of

PPIB. Currently, sponsors are in the process of approval of Upfront Tariff from

NEPRA. The project is planned to be completed in year 2018-19. During the year,

following major activities were carried out:

Issuance of Notice to proceed on 1t h June 2015

Issuance of LOI on 29th June 2015

2.3.6 1320 MW Thar Coal based Power Project at Thar Block-I by Mis. Shanghai

Electric Group
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This project is based on Thar Coalfields Block-I. Sino Sindh Resources Limited

(SSRL) holds the mining lease for Block-I of Thar Coalfields which covers

approximately 150 square km. Mis Shanghai Electric Group will develop 1320

MW power generation project, whereas SSRL as mine developer will be the coal

supplier for the project. Sponsors have submitted proposal on 24
th

March and

after evaluation Notice to Proceed and LOI will be issued.

2.4 Hydropower Projects under CPEC Framework

2.4.1 870 MW Suki Kinari Hydropower Project, Narran, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

The 870 MW Suki Kinari is located on River Kunhar, District Mansehra, Khyber

Pakhtunkhwa. The Project has progressed positively towards achievement of

Financial Closing in near future. In this regard, EPC tariff was obtained and

GOPIA was executed and EPC contractor has been finalized. The Project will

bring considerable foreign investment from China and will inject about 3081

Million clean, reliable and affordable units of electricity annually in the national

grid

2.4.2 720 MW Karot Hydropower Project

Karot Hydropower Project is located on River Jhelum, District Rawalpindi,

Punjab. Sponsors of the Project started land acquisition process in previous

financial year. Various meetings were held with the concerned departments of

Government of Punjab on land acquisition process. Negotiations on

Government of Pakistan Implementation Agreement (GOPIA), AJ&KIA, AJ&K

WUA, PPA and GoPunjab WUA started and substantially finalized. Sponsors

selected the EPC Contractor in February 2015 and submitted EPC stage tariff

petition to NEPRA in Apri12015. Furthermore, ground breaking of the project was

held in April 2015 during visit of Chinese President to Pakistan. Project being

included in list of priority projects under China Pakistan Economic Corridor,

efforts are being made for early start and completion of the Project.
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•

2.4.3 1100 MW Kohala Hydrpower Project

Kohala Hydropower Project is located on River Jhelum, Kohala, Azad Jammu &

Kashmir. NEPRA has conducted public hearing on feasibility study (Stage-1)

tariff negotiated between Power Purchaser & the project sponsors i.e.

CSAIUCTGI/CTG China. The feasibility study (Stage-1) tariff has been approved

by NEPRA. After accomplishment of such a significant milestone in the

development of the project, the process of issuance of LOS was initiated.

2.5 Coal Power Projects other than CPEC

33

2.5.1 660 MW Imported Coal based Power Project at Port Qasim by Mis. Lucky Electric

Power Company Limited

Lucky Group is actively developing the project with support and guidance of

PPIB. Major activities related to the project are as under:

• Issuance of Notice to Proceed (NTP) on January 15, 2015

• Submission of Performance Guarantee (PG) on January 27,2015

• Issuance of Letter of Interest (LOI) on February 11 ,2015

• Acceptance of Upfront Tariff by NEPRA on April 6, 2015

• Submission of Performance Guarantee on May 4,2015

Issuance of Letter of Support (LOS) on June 8,2015

2.5.2 350 MW Imported Coal based Power Project at Port Qasim by Mis. Siddigsons

Energy Limited

Mis. Siddiqsons Group of Companies operates in diverse range of industries

including textiles, construction, banking, engineering and trading sectors in

Pakistan. While utililizing their experience in Pakistan, Sponsors in collaboration

with Chinese companies and support of PPIB are actively pursuing the project.

Major achievements in 2014-15 are:

• Submission of Proposal on December 23,2014

• Issuance of Notice to Proceed (NTP) on January 19, 2015

• Issuance of Letter of Interest (LOI) on February 13, 2014
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2.5.3 150 MW Imported Coal based Power Project at Arifwala, Punjab by Mis. Grange

Power Limited (GPL)

Earlier, Grange Power Limited wanted to develop an oil based power project at

Arifwala. However, due to present government's Initiative to reduce dependence

on oil based power project, the project is now being developed by the sponsors

as a coal-based power project at the same location. Some is trying to set up 150

MW coal based power project at Arifwala. Some of the activities carried out on

this project are listed below:

• Settlement Agreement signed for coal-based IPP on 14th November2014

•

•

•

•

· .

LOI issuance for coal-based IPP on 14th November 2014

Tariff Determination by NEPRA for coal based IPP on 13th February 2015

LOS issued on 30th March 2015

EPC Contract 20th May 2015

O&M Contract 22nd May 2015

2.6 Processing of New Proposals for Coal Based Power Projects

A lot of interest has been generated from investors to develop coal based power

generation projects at various locations across Pakistan. Until now following

sponsorslinvestors have submitted their requests along with requisite fee to register

them for submitting proposals based on imported coal pursuant to the Power Policy

2015;

I) Mis. Asia Pak Investment Limited Mis. Asiapak, a Hong Kong based investment

holding company has submitted its interest in the development of 2x350 MW power

project at Port Qasim, Karachi. The proposed project is based on imported coal and

is under consideration by PPIB.

ii) Mis Eurocon International General Trading LLC (Dubai) in collaboration with PPX

International has submitted its interest for 600 MW imported coal based power

project at Port Qasim, Karachi

iii) Mis. Chishtian Power (Private) Limited wants to develop a 220 MW power project

based on imported coal at District Bahawalnagar, Punjab. Main sponsor of the

project is China Western Power Industrial Co. Ltd.
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After submission of detailed proposals (as per PPIB's requirements), requisite fees,

NOC for site, size, technology & fuel from the Power Purchaser, these proposals will be

submitted to PPIB Board for approval.

2.7 Conversion of Independent Power Producers (IPPs) of 2000 MW from Furnace Oil To

Coal

ECC of the Cabinet in its meeting held on 1til December 2013 directed Ministry of Water

& Power to advise NEPRA to determine the power purchase tariff for the IPPs concerned

in accordance with their prescribed procedure.

2.8 Hydropower Projects other than CPEC

2.8.1 147 MW Patrind Hydropower Project

The 147 MW Patrind HPP is Pakistan's first private sector hydropower project

under 2002 Power Policy. It is located on river Kunhar in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

and AJ&K areas. After achievement of Financial Close in December 2012 the

project entered into construction phase. Upto June 2015, around 55%

construction works were completed. The Project is sponsored by K-Water &

Daewoo E&C with the lending's of ADB, IFC, IsDB and KEXIM. The Project has

the ability to inject about 690 Million clean, reliable and affordable units of

electricity annually in the national grid.

2.8.2 102 MW Gulpur Hydropower Project

The 102 MW Gulpur HPP is located on River Poonch in AJ&K area has

significantly progressed towards achievement of Financial Closing. Following

execution GOPIA in previous FY, the AJKIA, WUA, LLA were signed besides

initialling of PPA & negotiations of Lenders' Direct Agreements about GOPIA,

AJ&KIA, WUA, and mobilization of EPC contractor at site for performing

preliminary construction works. The Project is being sponsored by renowned

Korean investors KOSER DAELIM & LOTTE alongwith financing from renowned

lenders KEXIM, ADB, IFC & FMO. The Project has the ability to inject about 475

Million clean, reliable and affordable units of electricity annually in the national

grid.
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2.8.3 590 MW Mahl Hydropower Project

Following fulfilment of codal formalities about award of 590 MW Mahl

hydropower project, PPIB issued LOI to CWEI a subsidiary of China Three

Gorges (CTG) for carrying out a bankable feasibility study. By the end of year

2014-15; two meetings of Panel of Experts (POE) were held wherein inter-alia

dam site location was finalized, and the 50% work on feasibility was completed.

2.8.4 640 MW Azad Pattan Hydropower Project

NEPRA determined the Feasibility Stage Tariff of the Project in October 2014 and

after achieving such an important milestone, the Sponsors were advised to

complete the codal formalities leading to issuance of Letter of Support.

2.8.5 500 MWChakothi-Hattian Hydropower Project

NEPRA determined the Feasibility Stage Tariff of the Project in October 2014.

Considering the tariff on lower side, sponsors approached the Court of Law in

December 2014 since then the progress on the project is halted.

2.8.6 545 MW Kaigah Hydropower Project

The Feasibility Study of the Project has been completed and approved by the

Panel of Expert in July 2014. The Sponsors are in the process of submitting

Feasibility Stage Tariff petition to NEPRA.

2.8.7 130 MW Sehra Hydropower Project

PPIB issued Letter of Interest to Mis Farab Energy & Water Projects Iran for

carrying out a bankable feasibility study of Sehra Hydropower Project on Poonch

River in AJ&K. The Feasibility Study of the Project was completed and approved

by the Panel of Experts. Later on, the Sponsors negotiated EPC Stage tariff with

NTDC.

2.8.8 132 MW Rajdhani Hydropower Project
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The Rajdhani Hydropower Project is located at 12 kilometers upstream of

Mangla Reservoir, District Kotli, AJ&K. The evaluation report for selection of

project sponsors was completed; however, the LOI could not be issued due to

non-clearance of GoAJ&K despite efforts of PPIB, MoW&P and the AJ&K

Council.

2.8.9 58 MW Turtonas-Uzghor & 80 MW Neckherdim-Paur Hydropower Projects

In light of PPIB Board decision, the projects were advertised in the national and

international print media on 11 th August 2014. The proposals received were

opened publicly on 2th November 2014.

The Proposals received from parties/investors were forwarded to the

Independent Consultant for evaluation purpose. The Consultant completed

evaluation process and submitted its Evaluation Report for review of the

Evaluation Committee.

2.9 Jri-Partite Letter of Support for Power Projects to be implemented by Provinces / AJ&K /
Gilgit-Baltistan

In order to address the issues and properly execute the projects initiated by provincial

governments and government of AJ&K/GB, a mechanism based on Tripartite LOS was

finalized amongst the parties. In the mechanism, PPIB and respective agency of

Province/AJ&K/GB Government will also enter into a Facilitation Agreement to set-out

the rights and obligations ofthe parties in relation to the LOS.

The model Tripartite LOS including Facilitation Agreement and Performance Guarantee

were approved by PPIB Board. This arrangement will ensure bankability of many

projects initiated by

2.10 HVDC Transmission Line Project from Matiari to Lahore

The upcoming coal based power projects are located in southern parts of country while

major hydel stations are planned in northern mountainous areas, which necessitate

extensive network of high voltage transmission lines & grid stations to interconnect

these upcoming power plants with national grid. Realization of public sector projects

and expansion of transmission system to deliver electricity require enormous funds.
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However, due to government's priority towards social sector, such as health, education,

water, etc., it is imperative that private sector finances be mobilized in transmission

system projects. In this regard, Ministry of Water & Power (MoW&P) constituted a

committee to formulate a new robust investor friendly Transmission Line Policy, which

has been finalized after discussions with all concerned stakeholders.

Subsequently, Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Cabinet approved a

Summary dated October 20,2014 on "Policy Framework for Private Sector Transmission

Line Projects". As per the Policy, the Private Power & Infrastructure Board (PPIB) is

responsible for coordinating with all the agencies and ministries for implementation of

the transmission system projects in private sector. PPIB will also provide one window

facility to investors for development of transmission system projects.

Nevertheless, National Transmission & Despatch Company Limited (NTDCL) has

signed a Cooperation Agreement with State Grid Corporation of China (SGCC) China

on April 20, 2015 for

(i) Matiari-Lahore Transmission & Transformation Project and

(ii) Matiari/ Port Qasim - Faisalabad Transmission & Transformation Project.

In this regard, NTDC is the owner and operator of national electric grid system while

SGCC has nominated its subsidiary - China Electric Power Equipment & Technology Co.

Ud. (CET) as EPC Contractor to develop the transmission line projects on build, own,

operate & transfer (BOOT) model. The transmission line projects have been placed in

the Prioritized Projects list according to the Agreement on China-Pakistan Economic

Corridor (CPEC) Energy Project Cooperation between China & Pakistan.

Initially, the Matiari-Lahore HVDC Transmission Project will be implemented under

Agreement on CPEC and Government of Pakistan Policy Framework for Private Sector

Transmission Line Projects 2015. During 2015, PPIB and NTDCL have worked together

for finalization of draft standardized Implementation Agreement (IA) and Transmission

Services Agreement (TSA). Meetings have been held with NTDCL and SGCC/CET to

deliberate upon the issues in draft standardized IA/TSA, provisions of Transmission Line

Policy & Guidelines 2015, and submission of Upfront Tariff Application to National

Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) for Matiari-Lahore HVDC Transmission

Line Project.

38 Private Power and Infrastructure Board



Furthermore, NTDCL has been working on process of acquiring land for Converter

Stations at Matiari and Lahore and for transmission line route (easement rights). Upon

SGCC's request, NTDCL delegation comprising commercial and technical teams

visited China in June 2015 in order to discuss issues related to land acquisition, O&M of

TIL, TSA, lA, etc Besides, NTDCL is working on preparation & submission of upfront

tariff application to NEPRA for ±660 kV Bi-pole HVDC Transmission Line Project (with

capability of 4000 MW) from Matiari to Lahore with Converter I Electrode Stations at both

ends.

2.11 Other Activities

Guidelines for processing of new thermal power projects to be processed pursuant to

announcement of the Power Generation Policy 2015 are being finalized.

The Government of Pakistan (GoP) earlier initiated CARE Program which IS an

integrated approach towards Sustainable Energy for Pakistan through import of LNG

and R-LNG to be available in first quarter of 2015 for setting up of power plants. In this

respect, PPIB was mandated by GoP to develop Private Power Projects (IPPs) Based

on R-LNG through initiation of International Competitive Bidding (ICB). Accordingly,

draft Request For Proposal (RFP), Expression of Interest (EOI) Document and

advertisement were prepared for selection of project sponsor to develop a 750 MW

Balloki-I Fast Track Independent Power Project based on R-LNG at Balloki (Site-1)

on a Build, Own and Operate Basis through ICB. The aforesaid documents were

finalized in series of meetings held with the stakeholders; however, the GoP later

decided that these R-LNG projects be executed in public sector through PSDP funds.
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MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES



3.1 Legal SeNices

Over a period of time PPIB has developed a team of professionals having diverse range

of legal expertise. Presently, all legal matters of PPIB including drafting of various

documents, negotiations for execution of the security package agreements, Review of

various agreements and opinion on such agreements, matters relating to litigation and

arbitration and review of Power Policies are being dealt by the in-house legal team which

contributed in improved performance of the major tasks.

In the earlier years of its establishment, the draft security package documents including

Implementation Agreement, Power Purchase Agreement, Fuel Supply Agreement were

drafted by international consultant engaged by PPIB for the purpose, however, since

2007, PPIB has been successful in drafting all the security package documents utilising

its own resources. More specifically, standardised documents in relation to hydel power

projects, coal power projects and power projects based on co-generation were drafted

in house. Besides, Pre-Qualification Documents, Request for Proposals for International

Competitive Biddings, Bank Guarantees, Letter of Interest, Letter of Support,

Memoranda of Understanding and other miscellaneous legal documents required from

time to time are being drafted by in-house team in addition to Petitions, Written

Statements, Para-wise Comments, Appeals and other documents required to be filed

before the courts of law.

PPIB normally does not need to refer the complex legal issues to external legal

counsels for review and opinions under the contractual instruments and legal remedies

available thereto and the in house legal counsels are fUlly capable to handle such

intrinsic matters. Legal issues arising out of Power Policies, Regulatory framework,

project related matters in relation to Pre-Qualification Documents and Evaluation of

bidding documents and proposals, Bank Guarantees, Letter of Interest, Letter of

Support, Implementation Agreement, Power Purchase Agreement, Fuel Supply

Agreement, Water Use Agreement, Land Lease Agreement and Financial Closing.

Some litigation cases have been filed against PPIB in various courts of law and PPIB

engages prominent lawyers having paramount expertise in power sector as well as

commercial and constitutional law. Notwithstanding, the success is not possible without

the input and support of the in-house legal team which provides its fullest support to the

external lawyers in drafting or vetting petitions, written statements, appeals, reviews,
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• Stakeholders Consultative Conference on Coal and R-LNG Based Power

Generation in February 2015 at Islamabad.

• CPEC Joint Energy Planning Working Group (JEWG) Meetings in March-

April 2015 at Islamabad.

Office Security

Security system has been installed which include CCTV cameras for 24/7 surveillance of

the building. Emergency exit doors are identified on each floor of the building for safe exit

of personnel in case of any personal or natural hazard. Further, panic alarm buttons have

been installed on each floor of the building which are connected with the security agency

and when button is pressed the quick response force qUIckly reach the office building for

necessary action.

3.3 Services related to Information Technology

PPIB has an E.ffactive network comprising of LAN and WAN providing all IT facilities

throughout the year with 100% uptime of IT services. All the efforts made in the area of IT
are fully aligned with PPIB's goals. Communication is done via gigabit network,

providing conducive environment to top management for right decision making.

LAN/WAN Services

PPIB uses state of the art technology in term of hardware and software with instance

access to information, sharing of printers, sharing databases etc.PPIB's employees can

access and share data even outside the office through other internet services at home or

any other place. For this purpose VPN technology has been implemented to access

users' data on server machines. Also webmail facility has been provided to access

official emails from anywhere outside the PPIB.

High Speed Fiber Optics Internet

In order to meet the time bound targets a fast and reliable internet of 5 Mbps speed has

been provided in PPIB through fiber optics. The internet is used to access worldwide

ocwer sector resources and to communicate with power sector investors.
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PPIB is fully equipped with video conferencing facility using dedicated fiber optics internet

connection. All important meetings requiring communication with distance participants are

conducted via this video link.

In-House Database Software Development

Power Projects Management

This year major work has been done in the area of

Power Projects Management wher:e all the

projects' milestone like expiry of LOI, Expiry of

LOS and PG's Expiries etc are prompted

periodically in inbox ofthe management for timely

decisions via email. This Software also maintains

the master copy of the said documents with

milestone.

Paper free environment

PPIB's Record scanning has been initiated this

year and a good chunk of relevant record has

been scanned so far and is in access of the Top

Management. The scanning of record is in

progress in phases, prioritizing the most relevant

first.

PPIB Website:
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In order to communicate with national/ international investors, the public information

regarding PPIB and power projects is available on PPIB's website WWN ppib.gov.pk.

The information has been categorized into

Oil/Gas, Hydel and Coal/Cogen Technology.

Current as well as previous power policies and

guidelines are also readily downloadable from

website. The E-Library Link on website provides
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miscellaneous applications and reports for the courts of law and provides assistance to

external counsels in preparation of arguments and representations before the courts of

law in litigation cases by or against GOP/PPIB.

The legal team of PPIB has not only provided legal support to organization to finalize the

policy framework for setting up of power projects but has also provided legal support to

other organizations and provincial governments and government of AJ&K. These

includes finalization of Power Policies by PPIB, Renewable Energy Policy 2006 by AEDB,

Guidelines for determination of Tariff for hydropower projects under 2002 policy,

Guidelines for sugar mills for co-generation from Bagasse, Guidelines for setting up

Private Power Projects under short term capacity addition initiative, Assistance to

Government of Sindh for development of Thar Coal, Assistance to Ministry of Water &

Power, Assistance to AEDB, Assistance to BOI for BIT's, acting as Agent of AJ&K

Council, Assistance to Governments of Punjab & Kp, Assistance in connection with

establishment of Gadani Power Park & CASA-1 000.

3.2 Human Resource /Administration related Activities

HR is one of the major strategic partners in PPIB. It is playing its due role to maximize

employee performance in all related areas for achievement of PPIB strategic objectives.

PPIB's HR played leading role in achieving the organization's strategic plans and

objectives With an emphasis and team building for better employees' synergy.

Capacity Building/Training and Development

PPIB management believes that capacity building is a dynamic process that relies on

one's motivation, effort, and determination to learn and progress which enables

organizations to change, flourish and grow Employees' capacity building is mainly

enhanced by encouraging their participation in decision making and by maintaining

close relationships With the employees. Managers In our organizations advocate human

capacity building through development of employees' professional skills and promotion

of teamwork. Effective communication and coaching from the seniors to their

subordinates is encouraged to promote knowledge sharing, organizational learning,

and effective leadership.

Capacity building of PPIB employees IS the top pnonty of management. Steps are taken
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for cqpacity building and enhancement of employees professional know how to meet

future challenges and to acquire diversified skills to meet international standards.

Employees are mentored by their supervisor to acquire on job skills. Training Need

Assessment is one of the continuous feature through which employees training need are

established and appropriate training is scheduled in well reputed training institutions.

PPIB employees are also encouraged to improve their educational qualification.

We at PPIB believe that training and development of our HR is one of the major tool to

provide competitive edge in Public Sector organization. During this period we trained

over 60% Executives in different fields which include but not limited to well-known

international trainings

Recruitment, Selection and Retention

HR Section of PPIB is fully cognizant of the fact that Recruitment and Selection is

foundation of organization. HR Section successfully handled recruitment, selection and

retention policies and recognizes the potential of current employees and arranged for

deserving employees to progress and taken more senior roles for employee retention.

Human Resources procedures and systems are updated for more effective employee

recruitment, selection, and retention, which include clearer non-biased performance

appraisal plans and reward systems.

Event Management

Number of foreign delegations visited Islamabad for exploring investment opportunities

in the power sector of Pakistan. HR Section successfully managed following delegations

and arranged meetings of PPIB and GOP officials with the delegates.

• PPIB played pivotal role in signing of CPEC power projects during visit of

• Chinese President

• Visit of Chinese Delegation in October 2014 to explore investment

• opportunities and to interact with stakeholders in public and private sector.
o
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extensive downloadable Information for investors, researchers and students.

The website is updated on a regular basis.

Urdu Translation of Website

As per the orders of Honorable Supreme Court of

Pakistan the website of PPIB can also be viewed

in Urdu Language. It can be translated in other

internationallanguages for the ease of foreign

investors.
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4. Private Power & Infrastructure Board is processing twenty eight (28) projects of 15063 MW

cumulative power generation capacity which are at different stages of

processing/development, and shall come on line as per scheduled timelines.

Sr.
Gross Fuel!

Expected
Name of the Project Capacity Technology

No. COO
(MW)

1 Patrind Hydropower Project 147 Hydro Apr-17

2*
Shandong Imported Coal 1320

Coal Dec-17
based power project

3*
Salt Range Power Project by

330
Coal

Dec-17
CMEC, China

Port Qasim Power Project by Coal

4* Sinohydro Resources Limited 1320 Dec-17/Jun-18
and AI Mirqab Capital

5*
HUBCO Imported Coal based

1320
Coal

Dec-17/Jun-18
power project

6*
Shanghai Electric Power

1320
Coal

Jun-18
Proiect at Thar Block - I, Sindh

7
Grange Holdings Power

163
Coal

Jan-19
Project

8*
Engro Powergen Project at

660
Coal

Feb-19Thar Block - II, Sindh

9
Siddiqsons Imported Coal

350
Coal

Mar-19
based power project

10 Gulpur Hydro Power project 102 Hydro Jun-19

11
Lucky Electric Imported Coal

660
Coal

Oct-19based power project
12 Sehra Hydel Project 130 Hydro Dec-19
13* Karot Hydel Project 720 Hydro Jun-20

14
Azad Pattan Hydropower

640
Hydro

Jun-20Project

15*
Suki Kinari Hydropower

870
Hydro

Sep-21Project

16 Kandra Power Project 120
Hydro

Dec-22

17 Chakothi-Hattian Project 500 Hydro Dec-22

18
Lower Palas Valley

665
Hydro

Dec-22Hydropower Project

19
Lower Spat Gah Hydropower

496 Hydro
Dec-22Proiect

20 Madian Hydropower Project 157 Hvdro Dec-22

21
Asrit-Kedam Hydropower

215 Hydro
Dec-22Project

o ,
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22 Mahl Hydropower Project 590 Hydro Dec-23

23* Kohala Hydropower Project 1100 Hydro Dec-23

24 Kaigah Hydel Project 548 Hydro Dec-24

25 Rajdhani Hydropower Project 132 Hydro Dec-24

26
Athmuqam Hydropower

350
Hydro

Dec-24Project

27
Turtonas-Uzghor Hydropower

58
Hydro

Dec-24
Project

28
Neckeherdm-Paur

80
Hydro

Dec-25
Hydropower Project

GRAND TOTAL

* CPEC Projects

Private Power and Infrastructure Board
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Islamabad, June 16, 2015: Federal Minister for Water & Power, Khawaja Muhammad Asif presiding over a 101 meeting of
Private Power and Infrastructure Board to review the progress of ongoing power projects and new initiatives.

Islamabad, April 20, 2015: Prime Minister Muhammad Nawaz Sharif with President of Peoples Republic of China Mr. Xi Jinping,
witnessing MOU among PPIB, China Three Gorges and Silk Road Fund on Development of Hydropower Projects.
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FEDERAL MINISTER FOR WATER AND POWER, KHAWAJA MUHAMMAD ASIF PRESIDING OVER A 100TH MEETING
OF PPIB BOARD TO REVIEW THE PROGRESS OF ONGOING POWER PROJECTS IN ISLAMABAD ON MARCH 12, 2015

MD PPIB, Shah Jahan Mirza and Shamusddin Ahmed Sheikh, Chief Executive Officer Sindh Engro Cool Mining Company
exchanging letter of Interest Documents issued for development of First 660 MW Thar Cool Power Project to be set up in
Thar Sindh. Federal Minister for Water and Power, Khawaja Muhammad Asif is also witnessing the ceremony in Islamabad
on November 20,2014
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Islamabad on November 11, 2014: Federal Minister for Water and Power, Khawaja Muhammad Asif presiding over 98th
meeting of Board of Private Power and Infrastructure Board to review the progress of coal and hydel projects

Islamabad on November 11, 2014: Federal Minister for Water and Power, Khawaja Muhammad Asif witnessed the
issuance of Letter of Interest (LOI) to CWE Investment Corporation China for construction of 590 MW Mahl Hydro
Power Project here today. MD PPIB Shah jahan Mirza and Mr. Sheng Zhendong from China exchanging the
documents on their respective side
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Federal Minister for Water and Poer Khawaja Muhammad Asif presiding over 97th meeting of Soard of Directors of Private Power
and lnfrastucture Board to review the Status of renowned ongoing projects in Islamabad on August 27, 2014J

.l
Islamabad, July 2, 2014 : Federal Minister for Water & Power, Khawaja Muhammad Asif presiding over a 96th meeting of BoD of
Private Power and Infrastructure Board to review the progress of ongoing Power Projects and other important matters related to
power sector.

"•
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IPPs Commissioned under 1994 Power Policy

1638 MW Kot Addu Power Generation Project at Kot Addu,
Muzaffargarh - Commissioned in December 1996 (Initially
KAPCO was a Public-Sector Power Project; however, through
its strategic sale by the Privatization Commission, it was
converted into IPP through privatization.

1292 MW Hub Power Company at Hub - Commissioned on
31 51 March 1997 (Project was processed prior to 1994 Power
Policy)

362 MW lalpir Power Project at Mehmood Kot,
Muzaffargarh - Commissioned on 6th November, 1997

365 MW Pak Gen Power Project at Mehmood Kot,
Muzaffargarh - Commissioned on 151 February, 1998
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29 MW Altern Energy Limited at Fateh Jang, Attock
Commissioned on (i) 6th June 2001 (first phase), and (ii) 20th

September 2008 (second phase)

157 MW Fauji Kabirwala Power Project at Kabirwala, District
Khanewal - Commissioned on 21 51 October 1999

136 MW Gul Ahmed Power Project at Korangi Town, Karachi
- Commissioned on 3rd November, 1997

140 MW Habib Ullah Coastal Power Project at Quetta
Commissioned on 11 th September, 1999

120 MW Japan Power Project, Off Raiwind Road, Jia Bagga 
Commissioned on 14th March, 2000
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131 MW Kohinoor Energy Power Project at Raiwind - Manga
Road, Near Lahore - Commissioned on 20th June, 1997

235 MW Liberty Power Project at Daharki, Ghotki 
Commissioned on 10th September, 2001

412 MW Rousch Power Project at Abdul Hakeem (Near
Sidhnai Barrage), District Khanewal (about 85 KM North-East of
Multan) - Commissioned on 11 th December, 1999

114 MW Saba Power Project at Farouqabad, Sheikhupura
Commissioned on 31 51 December, 1999

117 MW Southern Electric Power Project at Raiwind, Lahore 
Commissioned on 12th July, 1999

l

Annual Report 2014-15 58 Private Power and Infrastructure Board



126 MW Tapal Power Project at District West, Karachi 
Commissioned on 20111 June, 1997

586 MW Uch Power Project at Dera Murad Jamali, District
Nasirabad - Commissioned on 181h October, 2000

10.5 MW Davis Energen Power Project at Toba Tek Singh, Jhang - Commissioned on 131h July, 2013

IPPs Commissioned under 1995 Policy

84 MW New Bong Escape Hydropower Project at 7 km
Downstream, Mangla Dam, AJ&K - Commissioned on 23rd

March, 2013

.-
~~.~'.l .....'~~~
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IPPs Commissioned under 2002 Power Policy

165 MW Attock Gen limited at Morgah, Rawalpindi 
Commissioned on 17'11 March, 2009
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225 MW Atlas Power Limited at Sheikhupura - Commissioned
on 18ttl December,r2009

227 MW Engro Energy Limited at Qadirabad, District Ghotki 
Commissioned on 2th March, 2010

185 MW Foundation Power Company (Daharki) Limited at
Daharki, District Ghotki - Commissioned on 16th May, 2011

225 MW Halmore Power Generation Company Limited at
Bhikki, District Sheikhupura - Commissioned on 161n June,
2011

220 MW HUBCO-Narowal Power Project at Narowal
Commissioned on 22nd April, 2011
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200 MW liberty Power Tech at Faisalabad - Commissioned
on 13th January, 2011

200 MW Nishat Power Limited near Lahore - Commissioned
on 9th June, 2010

200 MW Nishat Chunian limited near Lahore 
Commissioned on 21 51 July, 2010

229 MW Orient Power Company Limited at Balloki, District
Kasur - Commissioned on 241h May, 2010

229 MW Saif Power limited at Sahiwal - Commissioned on
2th April, 2010
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225MW Sapphire Electric Company Limited at Muridke 
Commissioned on 4th October, 2010

404 MW Uch-II Power Limited at Dera Murad Jamali 
Commissioned on 4th April, 2014
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AUDITED STATEMENT OF INCOME
AND EXPENDIJURE, BALANOe SHEE~

OF PPIB fOR lIHE YEAR 20~ 4-15



7.1 Audited Statement of Income and Expenditure, Balance Sheet of PPIB for the Year
2014-15

PPIB has been following a standard practice since its inception to have its annual
accounts conducted by renowned accountants firms. As per Board decision, the
accountancy firm of A category is selected from the panel of State Bank of Pakistan and
is changed after every three years.

The audited accounts for the period 2014-15 are placed at Appendix audited by A.F.
Ferguson & Co" Chartered Accounts, who have issued un-qualifed audit report.

64 Private Power and Infrastructure Board



AUDITED STAlIEMENT OF INCOME
AND EXPENDlifBRE, BALANeH SBEEiJi

OF PPIB fOR THE ¥EAR 20~ a-~ 5



7.1 Audited Statement of Income and Expenditure, Balance Sheet of PPIB for the Year
2014-15

PPIB has been following a standard practice since its inception to have its annual
accounts conducted by renowned accountants firms. As per Board decision, the
accountancy firm of A category is selected from the panel of State Bank of Pakistan and
is changed after every three years.

The audited accounts for the period 2014-15 are placed at Appendix audited by A.F.
Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accounts, who have issued un-qualifed audit report.
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Appendix

PRIVATE POWER AND INFRASTRUCTURE
BOARD

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2015

A. F. FERGUSON & CO.
Chartered Accountants

a memberfirm ofthe PWC network
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The Board Members
Private Power and Infrastructure Board (PPIB)
Islamabad

Dear Sirs

A. F. FERGUSON & CO.

December 31,2015
499

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

We enclose six copies of the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015, together
with our report thereon to the Board members initialled by us for identification purposes. We
shall be pleased to sign our report in present or amended form after:

i)

ii)

the financial statements have been approved by the Board and signed by the
Managing Director and a Board Member authorized by the Board in this behalf;

we have signed our audit report on the financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2014;

iii) we have seen the Board's specific approval for:

.. Additions to property and equipment at cost

Proceeds from disposals having cost of Rs1 ,233 thousand
and net book value of Rs14 thousand

.. Additions to Intangible assets at cost

.. Provision against performance guarantees encashed

- Provision for staff gratuity

.. Provision for leave encashment

.. Held to maturity investments (TORs) purchased at cost

• Pak Oman Investment Company Limited

• Habib Bank Limited
• Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
• Meezan Bank Limited
• United Bank Limited
• NIB Bank Limited

9PJ-Vc .

Rupees '000

4,663

192

49,025

27,248

10,098

100,000

USD '000

1,047
4,661
2,400
2,400
1,377

r-:---' ---"-'- - _ _ __ - _.__ .
~ A.F.1'1IRGCSON8< co Chartered Accountants, a member.firm ofthe PWC network

1I6........ :Jrd Floor, 49 Blue Area, Fazl-ul-Haq Road, P.O. Box 3021, Islamabad-4400o, Pakistan
W: ~(sJ)2Z73457-6012004934-37;Fax: +92 (51) 2277924; < www.pwc.com/pk>

......, -I.ile.........~LLa.-irigar R.ooxL P.O. &x 4716. Karachi-74000, Pakistan; Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-5132426711-5: Fax: +92 (21) 324150°7
I JioIila-r Z3-c.Am~a..r.-.ol;.~v. p.o. Bar39, ~54660.Pakistan; Tel: +92 (42) 35715864'71; Fax: +92 (42) 35715872L._-'~"'£""-.""-,BajI YlIIjIII6Sqoor;n. KDbul,Afghanistan; Tel: +93 (779) 315320. +93 (799) 315320
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iv) we have received satisfactory reply from legal advisors listed at Annexure to this
letter in response to our request for advising the financial impact of pending
litigation I cases, if any; and

v) we have received a representation letter on the lines of the enclosed draft duly
signed by the Managing Director and Director Finance of PPIB.

2. Contributory Provident Fund not established

In terms of Chapter-13 of PPIB Regulations 2013, PPIB shall establish a provident fund
by the name of Contributory Provident Fund (CPF). All subscriptions by the employees and
PPIB, required to be contributed to CPF, shall be credited to The Contributory Provident Fund
Account'. However, we noted that no such fund has been established by PPIB and
sUbscriptions by the employees and PPIB upto June 30, 2015 have been carried as a liability
under accrued and other liabilities. We recommend that a CPF is established in accordance
with the requirements of aforesaid regulations so that income generated on subscriptions can
be credited to members of CPF.

3. Advance tax

PPIB has an accumulated tax refund of Rs 28,304 thousand as at June 30, 2015.
Refund applications for an aggregate amount of Rs 8,900 thousand pertaining to the tax years
2009, 2010 and 2011 were rejected by the taxation authorities and Commission Inland
Revenue (Appeals - II) Islamabad. However, PPIB filed an appeal against this order on in
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). ATIR on April 14, 2015 passed an order disposing
off the appeal against appellate order dated October 23, 2014 passed by the Commissioner
Inland Revenue (Appeals - II) Islamabad. It further advised PPIB to approach Taxation Officer
with the facts of the case so he may consult the Federal Board of Revenue regarding the refund
procedures of such applications. PPIB has filed the information with the Taxation officer. We
recommend that PPIB should also file refund application pertaining to year 2012, 2013 & 2014
and actively follow up this matter with taxation authorities for recoverability of this cumulative
balance.

4. We wish to place on record our appreciation of the cooperation and courtesy extended
to us by the management and staff of PPIB during the course of the audit.

Yours trUly

gm-~
encls
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ANNEXURE

PRIVATE POWER AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

List of legal advisors as referred to in our letter 499 dated December 31, 2015 from whom reply
was not received in response to our request for direct confirmations:

1) Mr. Yawar Farooqi. Farooqi & Company, Avocates & Advisors, Karachi

2) Barrister Khaliq-uz-zaman Khan, Az Zaman Advocates & legal Consultants, Islamabad

3) Mr. Yaser Aman Khan, Aman & Aman, Advocates & Corporate Consultants, Islamabad

4) Mr. Mubashir Rehman, Advocate High Court, lahore

5) MIs Cornelius, lane & Mufti, Advoates & Solicitors, lahore

6) Barrister Sajeel Sheryar, Sajeel & Mirza Barrister, Advocates & legal Consultants,
Islamabad

7) Mr. Salman Akram Raja, Raja Mohammad Akram & Co., Islamabad

8) MIs Ijaz Ahmed & Associates, Advocates & legal Consultants, Karachi

9JJJJ-tto.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE BOARD MEMBERS OF
PRIVATE POWER AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Private Power and Infrastructure
Board (PPIB), which comprise statement of financial position as at June 30, 2015, income and
expenditure account, statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and
statement of changes in funds and reserves for the year ended June 30, 2015 and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the PPIB's preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the PPIB's internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
PPIB at June 30, 2015 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

~i~·
Islamabad: July 18, 2016

Engagement partner: JehanZeb Amin

A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a memberfirm ofthe PwC network
PIA Building, 3rd Floor, 49 Blue Area, Fazl-ul-Haq Road, P.O. Box 3021, Islalllabad-44000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (51) 2273457-60/2604934-37; Fax: +92 (51) 2277924, 2206473; < www.pwc.com/pk>

• KARACHI. LAHORE, ISLAMABAD
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PRIVATE POWER AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30,2015

2015 2014

Note Rupees '000
NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property and equipment

Intangible assets
Long term investments
Loans and advances
Deferred taxation

5
6
7
8
9

44,545
779

295,642
46,578

143,436

44,273
681

451,451
37,954
76,817

530,980 611,176

CURRENT ASSETS

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Advance tax
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

10
11
12
13

55,047 24,182
28,304 21,639

1,406,347 1,460,447
92,082 115,050

1,581,780 1,621,318

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Provision against performance guarantees encashed
Staff gratuity
Provision for taxation
Accrued and other liabilities

14
15

16

453,807 404,782
26,276 79,623

523 -

45,002 32,675

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY:

PPIB FUND
Surplus on remeasurement of investments to fair value

Contingencies and commitments

525,608 517,080
1,056,172 1,104,238

1,587,152 1,715,414

17 1,532,803 1,683,368
54,349 32,046

1,587,152 1,715,414

18

1:~~:/
Boa Member

The annexed notes form 1 to 30 an Integral part of these financial statements

~~.
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PRIVATE POWER AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

2015 2014
Note Rupees in '000

INCOME

Performance guarantees encashed
Income from operations
Income from financial assets
Other income

EXPENDITURE

Salaries and benefits
Repairs and maintenance
Printing and stationery
Professional and legal services fee
Traveling exp~nses

Office rent
Telephone, fax, postage and courier
Fixed assets insurance
Utilities
Audit fee
Depreciation and amortization
Provision against performance guarantees encashed
Bank charges
Advertisement expenses
Other expenses

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Tax expense

LOSS AFTER TAX

18
19
20

21
22
23

14.4

24

25

50,007
148,188

904
199,099

293,530
5,597
2,752
9,730
5,696

14,006
1,462

720
1,971

363
4,471

49,025
1,019
5,370
5,904

401,616

(202,517)

53,593

(148,924)

261,836
35,938

104,232
958

402,964

255,359
6,821
2,327
6,472
5,733

12,733
1,356

658
2,664

330
4,831

261,836
217

5,753
4,238

571,328

(168,364)

54,842

(113,522)

The annexed notes form 1 to 30 an integral part of these financial statements.

QIm~.
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PRIVATE POWER AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

2015

Rupees'OOO

2014

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Surplus on remeasurement of investments to fair value
Tax relating to component of other comprehensive income

Gain on remeasurement of staff retirement benefit plans
Deferred tax (charge) I credit relating to remeasurement of staff
retirement benefit plans

Other comprehensive income - net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year

The annexed notes form 1 to 30 an integral part of these financial statements.

QIJJJ~ .

(148,924)

7,370 I
14,933
22,303

972

(2,613)
(1,641)

20,662

(128,262)

(113,522)

~I
~

578

21,252

(92,270)
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PRIVATE POWER AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND AND RESERVES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

PPIB fund Surplus on Total
remeasurement
of investment to

fair value
(Rupees '000)

Balance as at June 30 2013 1,796,312 11,372 1,807,684

Total Comprehensive income for the year

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

- I (113,522)

L.--,--_=":-:-1 L ---'2=..:0'-'-,6=..:7::-4:...J L.--,--~2=-,1,-=,25=-=2,-,
20,674 (92,270)

Balance as at June 30 2014 1,683,368 32,046 1,715,414

Total Comprehensive income for the year

(148,924)
20,662

(128,262)
1,587,15254,349

22,~031
'------:-~---'

22,303
Balance as at June 30 2015

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

The annexed notes form 1 to 30 an integral part of these financial statements.
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PRIVATE POWER AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
2015 2014

Note Rupees '000
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax
Adjustments for non cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation
Income on bank deposits and held to maturity investments
Provision for staff gratuity
Provision for leave encashment
Provision against performance guarantee encashed
Loss on sale of property and equipment
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/Ioss

(202,517)

4,471
(113,440)

27,248
10,098
49,025

14
(4,478)

(168,364)

4,831
(110,288)

21,560
10,147

261,836
3

44,246

(229,579) 63,971

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(31,273) (14,947)
11,374 7,098

(249,478) 56,122

(79,623) (16,561)
(9,145) (9.038)
(6,849) (5,882)

(8,624) (29,170)

(353,719) (4,529)

(4,663) (2,244)
(192) (100)

83
118,906 116,224
215,657 (37,503)
329,708 76,460

(24,011) 71,931

115,050 45,788

1,043 (2,669)

92,082 115,05013 =~~~CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Effect of working capital changes:
Increase in advances, prepayments
and other receivables
Increase in accrued and other liabilities

Gratuity paid
Leave encashment paid
Taxes paid

Increase in loans and advances

Net cash used in operating activities

Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Insurance claim received on property and equipment
Income on bank deposits and held to maturity investments
EncashmenUPurchase of investments - net
Net cash flow from investing activities

The annexed notes form 1 to 30 an integral part of these financial statements.
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PRIVATE POWER AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

1. STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1 Private Power and Infrastructure Board (PPIB) was constituted in August 1994 under a Federal Government
Notification to act as one window organization on behalf of all the agencies and Ministries of the Government
of Pakistan (GOP) to process and facilitate private sector power projects, monitor their performance and
perform all other related functions.

1.2 Private Power and Infrastructure Board (PPIB) Act NoVI of 2012 (the Act), was enacted on March 2, 2012
for establishment of PPIB as a body corporate having perpetual succession & common seal, independent in
performance of its functions and competent to sue and be sued in its own name and acqUire and hold
property. As per the Act, PPIB is responsible for implementing the power policies of the Government of
Pakistan, the development and implementation of power projects and related infrastructure in the private
sector and on pUblic-private partnership basis, enter into agreements & contracts, to provide for matters
connected therewith or incidental thereto, etc.

Upon commencement of the Act, the Private Power and Infrastructure Board established vide Federal
Government's Notification (hereinafter referred to as the former Board) stood dissolved and consequent to
such dissolution:-

(a) all assets, rights, powers, authorities and privileges and all property, cash and bank balances, reserve
funds, investment and all other interests and rights in or arising out of such property and all debts,
liabilities and obligations of whatever kind of the former board subsisting immediately before its
dissolution stood transferred to and vested in PPIB constituted under the Act;

(b) all debts and obligations incurred or contracts entered into, rights acquired and all matters and things
engaged to be done by, with or for the former Board are deemed to have been incurred, entered into,
acquired or engaged to be done by, with or for PPIB;

(c) all suits and other legal proceedings instituted by or against the former Board, before its dissolution, are
deemed to be suits and proceedings by or against PPIB and will be proceeded or otherwise dealt with
accordingly; and

(d) any reference to the former Board in any statutory instrument or document shall, unless the context
otherwise requires, be read and construed as reference to be PPIB.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the
provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

Qmi"b .
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2.2 Adoption of new and revised standards and interpretations

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Company are as follows:

Effective date
(annual reporting

periods on or after);

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Financial Instruments- Disclosure (Amendments)
Consolidated Financial Statements
Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Fair Value Measurement
Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments)
Property, Plant and Equipment (Amendments)
Employee Benefits (Amendments)
Separate Financial Statements (Amendments)
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)
Interim Financial Reporting (Amendments)
Intangible Assets (Amendments)
Agriculture (Amendments)

IFRS5
IFRS7
IFRS 10
IFRS 11
IFRS 12
IFRS 13
IFRS 14
IFRS 15
lAS 1
lAS 16
lAS 19
lAS 27
lAS 28
lAS 34
lAS 38
lAS 41

July 1, 2016
July 1, 2016

January 1, 2016
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2015
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2017
January 1,2016
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2016
January 1,2016
January 1, 2016

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations in
future periods, will have no material impact on the financial statements other than the impact on presentation
I disclosures. The Company is yet to assess the full impact of the amendments.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB, which are yet to be notified by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

Effective date
(annual reporting

periods on or after);

IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting standards July 1,2009
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement January 1, 2015

The following interpretations issued by the IASB have been waived of by SECP effective January 16, 2012:

IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains lease
IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements

2.3 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except fil)ancial instruments
which are carried at their fair values and staff retirement gratuity and pension plans which are carried at
present value of defined benefit obligation net of fair value of plan assets Assets transferred from Private
Power Cell (PPC) are carried at their assigned values as explained in note 3.1 to the financial statements.

qJ:l\t{tA .
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2.4 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which
PPIB operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is PPIB's functional
currency. Pakistan Rupee (PKR), which is functional currency of PPIB.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Property and equipment

a) Cost
Tangible assets except those transferred from PPC and leasehold land are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss (if any). Property and equipment transferred from PPC are stated at
assigned values less depreciation and impairment loss (if any) with corresponding credit to a property and
equipment reserve which has been amortised in full over the useful life of these assets. Leasehold land is
carried at cost less impairment, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amount when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to PPIB and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognized.

b) Depreciation
Depreciation is charged on the straight line method so as to allocate their cost over their estimated useful life
at the rates specified in note 4 to these financial statements

Depreciation is charged on prorata basis from the month in which an asset is acquired while no depreciation
is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. Days in excess of fifteen days are considered as
full month for the purpose of calculation of depreciation.

c) Repairs and maintenance

Maintenance and normal repairs, including minor alterations, are charged to income as and when incurred

d) Gains and losses on disposal
Gains and losses on disposal of assets are included in income and expenditure account currently.

e) Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost.

3.2 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to PPIB and that the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably. Intangible assets
having definite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization or impairment loss, if any.
Amortization is based on the pattern in which the assets' economic benefits are consumed. Intangible assets
which have indefinite useful life are not amortized and tested for impairment, if any.

Amortization is recognized in income and expenditure account on a straight line basis @ 10 % per annum.
from the month the asset is available for use.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefit embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in Income and expenditure account as
incurred.

~{tc.
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3.4 Flnanciallnstruments

Financial assets comprise investments, advances, other receivables, cash and bank balances. Financial
liabilities include provision against performance guarantees encashed, accrued and other liabilities. Financial
assets and liabilities are recognised when PPIB becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument and de-recognised when PPIB loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial
assets and when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. All financial
assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and
received respectively. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost, as the case
may be.

3.5 Financial Assets

PPIB classifies its financial assets in the following categories: held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables, available for sale investments and investments at fair value through profit or loss. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognized on the trade-date, the date on which the Management commits to purchase or sell the asset

3.5.1 Held to maturity investments

Investments are classified as held to maturity if these investments have a fixed maturity and PPIB has the
positive intent and ability to hold such investments to maturity. These investments are initially recorded at
cost being the fair value of consideration given including the acquisition cost and are subsequently carried at
each year end at amortised cost less impairment loss, if any.

3.5.2 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets. PPIB's loans and
receivables comprise "Advances, prepayments and other receivables" and "Cash and bank balances" in the
balance sheet Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

3.5.3 Available for sale Investments

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date. These investments may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices. These

. investments are initially recognised at cost and subsequently remeasured at fair value.

3.6 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised and carried at their amortised cost less an allowance for
any uncollectable amounts. Carrying amounts of trade debts and other receivables are assessed on a
regular basis and if there is any doubt about the realisability of these receivables, appropriate amount of
provision is made.

3.7 Other receivables

Other receivables are recognized and carried at original invoice value as reduced by appropriate provision
for impairment, if any.

3.8 Accrued and other liabilities

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be
paid in the future for goods and services received.

~~.
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3.9 Employee benefits

The main features of the employee benefit schemes in operation at PPIB for its employees are as follows:

3.9.1 Defined benefit plans

PPIB has in place a defined benefit funded gratuity for all eligible employees who complete qualifying period
of service and age.

The fund is administered by trustees. Annual contributions to the gratuity fund is based on actuarial valuation
using Projected Unit Credit Method, related details of which are given in note 15 to the financial statements.
The obligation at the balance sheet date is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows. All contributions are charged to profit or loss for the year. The latest actuarial valuation were
carried out at June 30,2015.

Actuarial gains and losses (remeasurement gains I losses) on employees' retirement benefit plans are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income and past service cost is recognized in profit and
loss when they occur.

Calculation of gratuity requires assumptions to be made of future outcomes which mainly includes increase
in remuneration, expected long-term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to convert future cash
flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions.

3.9.2 Defined contribution plan

PPIB operates and manages an unfunded contributory provident fund scheme for all its regular employees
who have completed the probation period as defined under the respective scheme.

Equal monthly contributions are made by PPIB and the employees at the rate of 5% of basic salary.
Contributions are charged to income and expenditure account.

3.10 Leave encashment

PPIB also has a policy whereby all its employees are able to encash accumulated leave balance as per
PPIB service rules. Provision is made in the financial statements for the amount payable on account of
unavailed leave balance of the employees. Provision for leave encashment is made for unavailed leave
balance as at period end at the rate of 2.5 days for every calendar month of duty period rendered by him

3.11 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the applicable rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits and tax rebates, if any. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary
differences arising between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred income tax assets
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses, if any, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the per'tod
where the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

PPIB takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the appellate and taxation
authorities.

QfJ$J~ .
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3.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue from profit on bank balances, investments, operations and other income is recognized on accrual
basis. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

Proceeds from encashment of performance guarantees is recognized as income in the year in which the
guarantee is encashed and the management believes that the outcome of the transaction can be estimated
reliably.

3.13 Operating leases

Operating lease rentals are recorded in income and expenditure account on a time proportion basis over the
term of the lease arrangements.

3.14 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are set off in the balance sheet, only when PPIB has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.15 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the
transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pak
rupee at the rate of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date and exchange differences, if any, are
charged to income for the current year.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and balances with bank.

3.17 ProvIsions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when PPIB has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are measured at the present
value of expected expenditure, discounted at a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the
time value of the money and the risk specific to the obligation. However, provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. use of certain accounting estimates. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying PPIB's accounting policies.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are as
follows:

Estimated useful life of operating assets - note 5

Provision for employees' defined benefit plans - note 15

Provision for leave encashment- note 16.1

Provision for taxation - note 25

~t/A.
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6. INTANGIBLES ASSET - Computer software

At July 1, 2013
Cost
Accumulated Amortization

Year ended June 30, 2014
Opening net book value
Additions
Amortization charge

At JUly 1, 2014
Cost
Accumulated Amortization

Year ended June 30, 2015
Opening net book value
Additions
Amortization charge

At June 30, 2015
Cost
Accumulated Amortization

7. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Rupees '000

802
147
655

655
100

74
681

902
221
681

681
192

94
779

1,094
315
779

2015 2014
Rupees '000

Held to maturity investments - note 7.1
Available for sale investments - note 7.2

Less:

213,460
82,182

295,642

408,690
74,812

483,502

Current portion of held to maturity investments shown under short term
investments - note 12

7.1 Held to maturity investments:

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIB's)
Regular Income Certificates (RICs)
Pak Oman Advantage Mutual Fund (POAF)

Term Finance Certificates (TFC's)

- Bank AI Habib Limited (BAHL) 1,039 (2014: 1039) certificates
- United Bank Limited (UBL) 3,000 (2014: 3000) certificates
- Engro Fertilizer Limited (EFL) 18,708 (2014: 18,708) certificates

32,051
295,642 451,451

203,626 214,157
80,000
24,035

5,180
2,495

76,023
83,698

203,626 401,890

82 Private Power and Infrastructure Board
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2015 2014
Rupees '000

Accrued Profit:

PIB's 9,834 5,752
RIC's 234

TFC's
-BAHL 248
- UBL 93
- EFL 473

213,460 408,690

Maturity dates, profit rates and market values are as follows:

Maturity dates
Profit rate % per

annum
Market value

2015 2014
Rupees '000

PIB's 2014 to 2017 9.6% to 11.25% 211,710 212,403
RIC's 2015 to 2016 12% to 13.44% 80,000

POAF 2015 KIBOR+ 2% 23,675

TFC's

- BAHL 2015 KISOR + 1.95% 5,198
- UBL 2014 KIBOR + 1.7% 7,493

- EFL 2015 to 2017 KISOR +(1.5% to
2.4 %) 75,082

211,710 403,851

7.2 Available for sale investments

NationallnvestmentTrust (NIT) 1,289,127 units (2014: 1,201,794 units)
Surplus on remeasurement of investment to fair value

8. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans and advances - considered good
Less: current portion of loans and advances - note 10

2015 2014
Rupees '000

26,725 26,725
55,457 48,087
82,182 74,812

62,117 46,932
(15,539) (8,978)
46,578 37,954

These represent loans to employees for house construction, medical and other purposes and carry interest at the
rate of one year KISOR at the rate prevailing when loan is granted and subsequently changed with the rate
prevailing on the 1st July in each year. The loans are recoverable in equal monthly installments spread over a
period of 5 years and are secured against future gratuity payments of the employees and also indemnity bonds in
favour of PPIS executed by two employees of PPIS acting as sureties on behalf of employee obtaining loan.

~tte· .
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2015 2014
Rupee in '000

9. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred credits! (debits) arising due to:

Accelerated depreciation
Provision for minimum tax
Accumulated tax losses

Surplus on remeasurement of investments to fair value
Remeasurement of staff gratuity

10. ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

162 486
(359)

(127,345) (73,257)
(127,183) (73,130)

862 16,041
(17,115) (19,728)

(143,436) (76,817)

Current portion of loans and advances - note 8
Prepayments
Accrued interest on bank deposits
Other receivables

11. ADVANCE TAX

15,539
6,161

776
32,571
55,047

8,978
5,602
1,184
8,418

24,182

This represents tax withholding suffered at source and includes an amount of Rs 8,900 thousand relating to tax
years 2009, 2010 and 2011 in whose respect, the refund applications were filed by the Board with taxation
authorities on August 26, 2011. A reminder of the same was filed on June 18, 2012 whereas, the aforesaid
applications were rejected by the Officer Inland Revenue, Regional Tax Office, Islamabad. PPIB had filed appeals
with the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) in this respect which were rejected. Thereafter, PPIB
filed appeals with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). In disposing off the appeal, the ATIR has
vacated the order of CIR-A and directed PPIB to approach the Taxation Officer (TO) and the TO has been
directed that he may consult Federal Board of Revenue for procedure in such cases.

c;nJ~.
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12. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS - Held to maturity

Regular Income Certificates (RICs)

Term Deposits Receipts (TORs)
(In Pak Rupees)

Pak Oman Investment Company Limited (POI C)
First Women Bank Limited (FWBl)
National Bank of Pakistan (NBP)
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited (HMBl)

(In US Dollars)
Faysal Bank Limited (FBl) Nil (2014: US$ 2,400,000)
Allied Bank Limited (ABl) Nil (2014: US$ 1,350,000)
Habib Bank Limited (HBl) US$ 1,047,037 (2014: US$ 2,600,000)
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited (HMBl) US$ 4,661,024 (2014: US$

2,949,948)
National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) Nil (2014: US$ 1,024,029)
Meezan Bank Ltd (MBl)US$ 2,399,919 (2014: nil)
United Bank Limited (UBl) 2,399,858 (2014: nil)
NIB Bank (NIB) US$ 1,377,244 (2014: nil)
JS Bank Limited (JSBl) Nil (2014: US$ 1,400,000)

Current maturity of long term investments - note 7

Held to maturity investments

Accrued profit:

RICs

TOR's
In Pak Rupees

-POIC
-FWBl
- NBP
- HMBl

In US Dollars

- FBl
- ABl
- HBl
- HMBl
- NBP
- JSBl
- MBl
- UBl
- NIB

2015 2014
Rupees '000

80,000 70,000

100,000 25,000
50,000
50,000
50,000

236,450
133,043

106,270 256,190
473,094 290,717

100,918
243,592
243,585
139,790

137,970
1,306,331 1,330,288
1,386,331 1,400,288

32,051

235 283

8,975 916
4,099
3,953
2,510

4,791
906

2,348 3,317
6,231 2,712

1,845
2,776

933
900
394

1,406,347 1,460,447
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12.1 Maturity dates and profit margin are as follows:

Currency Maturity
Profit rate % per

2015 2014
annum

Rupees '000
RIC PKR July 2015 to February 12% 80,000 70,000

2016
TDR's

POIC PKR August 2015 10.50% 100,000 25,000
FWBL PKR August 2014 9.15% 50,000
NBP PKR August 2014 9.00% 50,000
HMBL PKR December 2014 10.15% 50,000
FBL USD August 2014 2.40% 236,450
ABL USD October 2014 3.50% 133,043
HBL USD October 2015 3.20% c:J 157,656
HBL USD March 2015 2.75% 68,974
HBL USD March 2015 2.75% 29,560

106,270 256,190
HMBL USD February to April 2016 2.55% - 4.00% 473,094 290,717
MBL USD April 2016 1.97% 243,592
UBL USD April 2016 1.90% 243,585
NIB USD May-16 2.10% 139,790
NBP USD Oct-14 20.50% 100,918
JSBL USD August 2014 2.40% 137,970

1,386,331 1,400,288

13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

In deposit accounts
- Local currency 24,857 88,354
- Foreign currency (USD 662,151, 2014:USD 271,300) 67,210 26,693

Cash in hand 15 3
92,082 115,050

13.1 Balances in these accounts include Rs. 25,857 thousand (2014: Rs. 15,239 thousand) held on account of employees'
provident scheme.

13.2 Bank balance amounting to Rs. 615 thousand (2014 :Rs. 8,119 thousand) is placed with National Bank of Pakistan in
high yielding checking account where profit is calculated on daily basis with quarterly payouts at the rate of 4.5% (2014
: 7.5%) per annum

~tu·
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2015 2014
Rupees '000

14. PROVISION AGAINST PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES ENCASHED

Spencer Powergen Company of Pakistan Limited - note 14.1
Star Energy Venture Pakistan Limited
Liberty Power Limited
Star Power Generation Company Limited - note 14.2
Kotli Hydropower Project-note 14.3

41,046
78,400
23,500

261,836
49,025

453,807

41,046
78,400
23,500

261,836

404,782

14.1 Based on order dated April 4, 2013 of Islamabad High Court, PPIB had to pay the amount of performance
guarantee of Rs 33 million along with profits amounting to Rs 24.51 million. PPIB may be required to pay
further amount of Rs. 41.05 million as per contempt petition pending in Islamabad High Court and filed by
the Spencer Powergen Company of Pakistan Limited.

14.2 Star Power Generation Company Limited has filed a writ petition before Sindh High Court challenging the
encashment of performance guarantee by PPIB and PPIB may be required to pay the said amount.

14.3 In April 2010, PPIB issued Letter of Support (LOS) to Mira Pakistan Limited for the establishment of 100
MW Hydropower project on the Poonch River, near Kotli located in the territory of the State of Azad Jammu
and Kashmir (AJ&K) Due to failure to achieve of financial close on the specified date ie April 29, 2013, the
performance guarantee was encashed on May 29, 2013. As per the agreement of agency between PPIB
and AJ&K Council, "The Authorized Agent (PPIB) shall transfer to the Principal (AJ&K Council), full amount
of bank guarantee and bid bond following their encashment in the event of default by sponsors or project
company less any actual legal expenses incurred by the Authorized Agent". In case the PPIB's act of
encashment of performance guarantee is not contested at court of law then after three years this amount
shall be payable by PPIB to AJ&K Council.

14.4 The provision mentioned above are being carried on the basis of management's assessment of related
cases. Further, PPIB is also defending its views before the High Court in connection with the above cases
filed by the aforesaid entities.

2015 2014

Rupees '000
15.. STAFF GRATUITY

174,143 152,928
(147,867) (73,305)

26,276 79,623

16,699 13,831
10,549 7,729
27,248 21,560

8,237 4,246

15.1 The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

15.3 Actual return on plan assets

15.2 The amounts recognised in income and expenditure account are as follows:

Current service cost
Net interest cost
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2015 2014
Rupees '000

152,928 129,854
16,699 13,831
19,382 14,826

(13,298) (1,870)

_---:;-::;(,.;c1,s-56:;.;8O"'-) _~(~3,~71i;-;:3;"-)
174,143 152,928

15.4 Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning
Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation at end

15.5 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning
Expected return on plan assets
Contributions to the fund
Benefits paid
Remeasurement of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at end

73,305
8,833

79,623
(13,298)

(596)
147,867

54,368
7,097

16,561
(1,870)
(2,851)
73,305

Based on the actuarial valuation a contribution of Rs. 11,068 thousand is expected to be paid to the
defined benefit plan during the year ending June 30,2016.

15.6 Major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets of defined gratuity plan are as follows:

2015 2014 2015 2014

% % Rupee in '000

Bank balances 66% 28% 98,523 20,881
Term Finance Certificates 31% 66% 45,215 48,305
NIT units 3% 6% 4,129 4,119

100% 100% 147,867 73,305

2015 2014
% p.a %p.a

15.7 Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are as follows:

Discount rate 9.75% 13.5%
Future salary increase 9.75% 13.5%
Expected return On plan assets 9.75% 13.5%

15.8 Amounts for current and previous annual periods are as follows:

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Rupees in '000

Defined benefit obligation 174,143 152,928 129,854 57,421 48,928
Plan assets (147,867) (73,305) (54,368) (43,547) (34,935)

26,276 79,623 75,486 '13,874 13,993
Experience adjustments on
- Plan liabilities (1,568) (3,713) 60,736 (1,882) 70
- Plan assets (596) (2,851) (486) 19 1,249

<;A;RljA .
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2015 2014

Rupees in '000
15.9 Re-measurements recognised in OCI during the year:

Remeasurment (loss) I gain on obligation
Remeasurment gainl (loss) on plan assets

16. ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

1,568
(596)
972

3,713
(2,851)

862

Accrued expenses
Provision of Leave encashment - note 16.1
Audit fee payable
Withholding tax
Retention money
Other payables
Provident fund payable

16.1 Movement of provision of leave encashment are as follows:
Balance at the beginning
Expense for the year
Payment to outgoing employees
Balance at the end

17. PRIVATE POWER AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD FUND (PPIB FUND)

4,363 3,080
11,558 10,605

693 680
99 134

710 710
1,722 2,227

25.857 15,239
45,002 32,675

10,605 9,496
10,098 10,147
(9,145) (9,038)
11,558 10,605

As per the requirement of Section 14 of the PPIB Act (Act No. VI of 2012), the accumulated surplus and
government fund available on the PPIB balance sheet as at March 1, 2012 were converted into PPIB Fund.
The PPIB Fund is to be administered and controlled by PPIB. The PPIB Fund is to be funded through
various sources as specified in Section 14 of the Act and expended for operations of PPIB for the objects
and purposes as specified in Section 15 of the Act. At the end of each financial year, a balance sheet and
income and expenditure account is required to be prepared and any profit I loss is to be transferred to the
PPIB Fund.

18. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Certain sponsors of power projects have filed suits against Government of Pakistan (GOP) I PPIB for
aggregate claims against damages of Rs.113,491 million (2014: Rs 113,491 million) and US$ 58 million
(2014: US$ 58 million). Also, claims have been lodged against the performance guarantees encashed
amounting to RS.79 million (2014: Rs 79 million) and US$ 1.147 million (2014 US$ 1.147 million).These law
suits are currently being defended by PPIB. At this stage, either it is not possible to determine the expected
outcome of these litigations or the favorable results to PPIB are probable. All the cases are pending in the
courts of law so the expected timing and likelihood of outflow of resources cannot be ascertained.

There are no other known contingencies or commitments at the year end.

(jJJJljA .
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2015 2014

Rupee in '000
19. INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

Registration fee 508 774
Request for quotation fee 773
Pre qualification document fee 785
Expression of interest fee 2,561 1,629
Project processing fee 46,938 31,977

50,007 35,938

20. INCOME FROM FINANCIAL ASSESTS

Income on bank deposits 3,379 2,936
Income on held to maturity investments 104,222 107,352
Interest income on loans to employees 5,839 2,814
Exchange gain/ (loss) 34,748 (8,870)

148,188 104,232

21. SALARIES AND BENEFITS

Salaries and allowances 216,612 210,031
Provision for staff gratuity 27,248 21,560
Provision for leave encashment 10,098 10,147
Provident fund contribution 6.120 5,966
Other benefits 33,452 7,655

293,530 255,359

22. REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE

Vehicle running and maintenance 4,295 5,292
Office repair, maintenance and renovation 500 541
Computer repair 298 285
Equipment repair 449 669
Furniture repair 55 34

5,597 6,821

23. PRINTING AND STATIONERY

Computer stationery 612 571

Office stationery 853 839
Printing 1,287 917

9Rfttc . 2,752 2,327
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2015 2014
Rupees '000

24. OTHER EXPENSES

25.

Newspapers and periodicals
Training, conferences and seminars
Entertainment and office supplies
Security services
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Miscellaneous

TAX EXPENSE

Current tax
Deferred tax

172
2,111
1,572
1,119

14
916

5,904

460
(54,053)
(53,593)

259
1137
1132
1052

658
4,238

359
(55,201)
(54,842)

25.1 The relationship between the tax expense and loss for the year is as follows:

Loss before tax

Tax at applicable tax rate of 33% percent (2014: 34 percent)
Effect of change in tax rate
Effect of amounts chargeble to a lower tax rate
Effect of exempt income
Others

26. FUND MANAGEMENT

(202,517)

(66,831)
12,718

(147)
(70)

737
(53,593)

(168,364)

(57,244)
1,662

740
(54,842)

PPIS's objective when managing fund is to safe guard PPIS's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
achieve its primary objective, provide benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong fund base to support the
sustainable operations. There were no changes to PPIS's' approach to fund management dUring the year and PPIS is
not subject to externally imposed fund requirements.

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

PPIS operates in an economic regime current dominated by entities directly or indirectly controlled by the Government
of Pakistan ("State - controlled entities") through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
organizations. Transactions with these state - controlled entities are not very significant and hence impracticable to
quantify for disclosure in these financial statements.

Other related parties are key management personnel and gratuity fund/trust. Transactions with key management
personnel and gratuity fund are as follows:

2015 2014
Rupees '000

Salaries and benefits
Contribution to gratuity fund/ trust

~~.

48,641
79,623

50,649
16,561
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

28.1 Financial assets and liabilities

June 30,2015

Financial assets :

Maturity upto one year
Advances & other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

Maturity after one year
Long term investments
Loans and advances

Financial liabilities :

Maturity upto one year
Provision against performance guarantees encashed
Staff Gratuity
Accrued and other liabilities

June 30, 2014

Financial assets:
Maturity upto one year

Advances & other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

Maturity after one year
Long term investments
Loans and advances

Financial liabilities:

Maturity upto one year
Provision against performance guarantees encashed
Staff Gratuity
Accrued and other liabilities

Loans and Available for
Receivables sale Total

Rupees '000

48,886 48,886
1,406,347 1,406.347

92,082 92.082

213,460 82,182 295,642
46,578 46,578

1,807,353 82,182 1,889,535

Other financial
Total

liabilities

Rupees '000

453,807 453,807
26,276 26,276
45,002 45,002

525,085 525,085

Loans and Available for
Total

Receivables sale
Rupees '000

18,580 18,580
1,460,447 1,460,447

115,050 115,050

376,639 74,812 451,451
37,954 37.954

2,008,670 74,812 2,083,482

Other financial
Total

liabilities
Rupees '000

404,782 404,782
79,623 79,623
32.675 32,675

517,080 517,080
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Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of PPIB's financial assets have been assessed below by reference to external credit ratings of
counterparties determined by The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) and JCR • VIS Credit Rating
Company Limited (JCR-VIS). The counterparties for which external credit ratings were not available have been
assessed by reference to internal credit ratings determined based on their historical information for any defaults in
meeting obligations.

Investments

Maturity upto one year

Counterparties with external credit rating

Rating 2015 2014
Rupees '000

A 1+ 1,326,112 1.171,285

A1 140,745

A2 54,099
A+(f) 24,035

·Counterparties without external credit rating 70,283

Maturity after one year
A+ 76.496
3 star 82,182 74,812

·Counterparties without external credit rating 293,695 300,143

1,701,989 1,911,898

Loans, advances, deposits and other receivables

Maturity upto one year

Counterparties with external credit rating

Counterparties without external credit rating

Maturity after one year
Counterparties without external credit rating

Bank balances

A+(f)
A 1+

24,972
776 1,184

23,138 17,396

46,578 37,954
95,464 56,534

Counterparties with external credit rating

• Counterparties with no f limited history of defaults in the past.

A1
A 1+
A2
A3

8,726
82,676

665

92,067

8,435
51,687

672
54,253

115,047
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28.2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

28.2.1 Financial risk factors

PPIB's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk). PPIB's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on PPIB's financial performance. The Board Members have
overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of PPIB's risk management framework. The Board Members
are also responsible for developing and monitoring PPIB's risk management policies.

This note presents information about PPIB's exposure to each of the above risks, PPIB's objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk, and PPIB's management of fund. Further quantitative disclosures are
included throughout these financial statements.

Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by PPIB, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and PPIB's activities. PPIB, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

28.2.2 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. Management believes that PPIB is exposed to credit risk to the extent of long term
investments, advances, interest accrued, other receivables, short term investment, and bank balances. PPIB controls
its credit risk by continuous monitoring of its receivables and diversification of its investment.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date was:

2015 2014
Rupees '000

Advances and other receivables
Short term investments
Bank balances
Long term investments

48,886
1,406,347

92,067
295,642

1,842,942

18,580
1,460,447

115,047
451,451

2,045,525

Geographically there is no concentration of credit risk as PPIB operates in the same geographical area.

None of the above liquid assets are overdue nor impaired. Based on past experience, management of PPIB believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of liquid assets not past due.

28.2.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that PPIB will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. PPIB's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to it's
reputation.

PPIB follows an effective cash management and planning policy to ensure availability of funds and to take measures
for new requirements.

The maturity profile of PPIB's financial liabilities based on the contractual amounts is as follows:

Carrying
amount

Carrying
amount

2015
Contractual
cash flows
(Within one

vear)
Rupees in 'ODD

2014
Contractual
cash flows
(within one

vear)

Provision against performance guarantees encashed
Other payables having maturity up to one year

453,807
45,002

498,809

453,807
45,002

498,809

404,782
32,675

437,457

404,782
32,675

437,457
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28.2.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument, may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in the
market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market, will affect
PPIB's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.
PPIB is exposed to currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk only.

28.2.5 Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Pak rupee is the functional currency of PPIB and as a result currency
exposure arises from transactions and balances in currencies other than Pak Rupee. PPIB's potential currency
exposure comprises;

-Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items.
-Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues.

The potential currency exposures are discussed below;

Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items

Monetary items, including financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of PPIB are periodically restated to Pak rupee equivalent, and the associated gain or loss is taken to
the income and expenditure account. The currency risk related to monetary items is managed as part of the risk
management strategy.

Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues

Performance guarantees encashed, Income from operations, and certain income on investments and bank
deposits is earned in currencies other than the functional currency. These currency risks are managed as a part
of overall risk management strategy. There were no forward exchange contracts.

Exposure to currency risk

PPIB's exposure to currency risk is as follows:

2015 2014
US Dollars '000

Short term investments - held to maturity

Bank balances

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Rupees per USD
Average Rate

Reporting date mid point rate

Sensitivity analysis

11,885

662

12,547

2015

100.86
101.50

11,724

268

11,992

2014

102.89

98.55

At June 30, 2015, if the currency had weakened/strengthened by 10% against US dollar with all other variables
held constant, surplus of income over expenditure account for the would have been Rs 127 million (2014: Rs
118 million) higher/lower. The analysis is performed on the same basis for comparative period.

gmttc .
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28.2.6 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from mismatches of financial
assets and liabilities that mature in a given period. A policy is adopted to ensure that interest rate risk is
minimized by investing in fixed rate investments like PIBs, RICs, and TORs. There were no borrowings.

Profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of variable rate interest-bearing financial instruments is:

2015 2014
Rupees '000

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets
Long term investments 107,736

PPIB does not have an variable interest bearing financial assets hence PPIB is not exposed to interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

An increase/(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have nil effect (2014: Rs
1.411 million) on equity and surplus as there are no variable rate instruments on the reporting date. This
analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the
comparative period.

28.2.7 Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

Due to 10% increase/decrease in quoted market rate at the balance sheet date, the carrying value of the
available for sale investments would have been higherllower by Rs. 8,218 million (2014 : Rs. 7974 million) with
corresponding increase in funds and reserves balance.

qmt/A .
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28.3 Fair value of financial Instruments

The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximates their
fair values except for held to maturity financial assets which are carried at amortized cost whose fair value in
comparison with carrying amount is as follows:

2014
Carrying Fair Value
amount

Rupees '000

2015
Fair ValueCarrying

amount

Assets carried at amortized cost

Short term Investments
Long term investments

1,406,347
213,460

1,619,807

1,406,347
211,710

1,618,057

1,460,447
408,690

1,869,137

1,460,447
403,851

1,864,298

The basis for determining fair values is as follows:

28.3.1 Interest rates used for determining the fair value

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government yield
curve at the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread.

28.3.2 Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at the fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (I.e., as prices) or indirectly (Le., derived from prices)

Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

June 30, 2015
Assets carried at fair value

Level 1 Level 2
Rupees '000

Level 3

Available for sale investments 82,182
June 30,2015
Assets carried at fair value

Available for sale investments 74,812

The canrying value of the financial assets and liabilities reflected in financial statements approximate their
respective fair values.

c;jJJ\fVc .
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28.3.3 Determination of fair values

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and! or disclosure
purposes based on the following methods. '

28.3.4 Available for sale investments

The fair value of available for sale investments is determined by reference to their quoted closing repurchase
price at the reporting date and where applicable it is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

28.3.5 Non - derivative financial assets

The fair value of non- derivative financial assets is estimated at the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure
purposes.

28.3.6 Non - derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison,

29. Rounding off

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise stated.

30. DATE OF APPROVAL

These financial statements were approved on 1 8 JUL 2016

QIm-~.

by the Board Members of PPIB,

kJ~
:/

Boa d Member
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